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- JACKSON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

151 Don Connot Boulevard
Jackson, NJ 08527-3497
(732) 833-4603
FAX (732) 833-4609
www.]acksonsd.org

Dt. Stephen Genco Ms. Michelle Richardson
Superintendent Business Administrator/Board Secretary

November 18, 2016

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Jackson School District

County of Ocean, New Jersey 08527

Dear Board Members:

The comprehensive annual financial report of the Jackson School District for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2016, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data
and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the
management of the Jackson Board of Education. To the best of our knowledge and belief,
the data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a
manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the
various funds of the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an
understanding of the District’s financial activities have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections; introductory,
financial, statistical and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter,
the District’s organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The financial section
includes the management’s discussion and analysis, general-purpose financial statements
and schedules, as well as the auditor’s report thereon. The statistical section includes
selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis.
The District is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions
of The Single Audit Act of 1996 and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance) and State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 “Single Audit
Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid.” Information related to
this single audit, including the auditor’s report on the internal control structure and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and findings and recommendations are
included in the single audit section of this report.



1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS’ SERVICES: Jackson School District is an
independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the GASB as established by
NCGA Statement No. 3. All funds of the District are included in this report. The Jackson
Board of Education and all its schools constitute the District’s reporting entity.

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels K
through 12. These include regular, vocational, as well as special education for handicapped
children. The District completed the 2015-2016 fiscal year with an average daily enrollment
of 8,601 students, which is 106 students below the previous year’s enrollment. The
following details the changes in the student enrollment of the District over the last ten years:

Average Daily Enrollment

Fiscal Student Percent
Year Enrollment Change
2015/16 8,601 -1.2%
2014/15 8,707 -2.6%
2013/14 8,941 -2.3%
2012/13 9,149 -2.7%
2011/12 9,398 -2.0%
2010/11 9,588 0.0%
2009/10 9,595 -2.0%
2008/09 9,748 0.0%
2007/08 9,753 1.1%
2006/07 9,651 4%

2. ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK: The Jackson Township School District
continues to experience a modest decline in enrollment. Student population is expected to
level off at approximately the current level. A number of new housing developments have
broken ground in the town, this new housing will bring additional students into the district
schools, thus increasing enrollment. The Jackson Township School District is committed to
continued fiscal responsibility, full compliance to regulations and the understanding of the
difficult economic conditions of our taxpayers while continuing to provide the highest
quality instruction to all our students.

3. EDUCATION PROGRAM

Mission Statement: The Jackson School District is a partnership of dedicated staff, learners and
community members committed to developing the unique abilities of each student through compelling
learning experiences in a safe and nurturing environment.

Our comprehensive, engaging and techinology-enriched programs inspire, educate and motivate students to
become independent, creative and critical thinkers who will thrive in a diverse, evolving global society.

We are resofved that through commitment to scholarship, character and initiative, our students will
succeed beyond the expectations of New Jersey and Common Core Standards as they excel in their life-long
pursuit of knowledge.

The Jackson School District educational program spans Pre-Kindergarten to 12™ grade in six
elementary schools, two middle schools and two high schools. Over 8,600 students have an
opportunity to participate in a variety of programs which include, but are not limited to, the
following;:



Basic Skills Literacy

Basic Skills Math

Enrichment

English as a Second Language
Special Education

The elementary curriculum features a developmentally appropriate approach to learning and
an emphasis on activities that promote early literacy. The secondary program offers required
and elective courses, which are aligned to the Core Curriculum Content Standards.

The District continues to adapt the educational program to the standards set forth in the No
Child Left Behind Legislation. Thus, a five-year curriculum plan was created in math,
literacy and science. Staff development activities are geared toward fulfilling the “Highly
Qualified” standards for certified and non-certified personnel.

4. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS: Management of the District is responsible
for establishing and maintaining an internal audit control structure designed to ensure that
the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate
accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The internal control
structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objects are
met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should
not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits
requires estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for
ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with
applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is
also subject to periodic evaluation by the District management.

As part of the District’s single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the
adequacy of the internal control structure, including that portion related to federal and state
financial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the District has compiled with
applicable laws and regulations.

5. BUDGETARY CONTROLS: In addition to internal accounting controls, the District
maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure
compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by
the voters of the municipality. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general
fund, the special revenue fund, and the debt service fund. Project-length budgets are
approved for the capital improvements accounted for in the capital projects funds. The final
budget amount as amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section.

The encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on
a line item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as re-
appropriations of fund balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be re-appropriated
are reported as reservations of fund balance at June 30, 2016.




6. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM REPORTS: The District’s accounting records reflect
generally accepted accounting principles, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting
Standards board (GASB). The accounting system of the District is organized on the basis of
various funds. These funds are explained in “Notes to the Financial Statements,” Note 1.

7. CASH MANAGEMENT: The investment policy of the District is guided in large part
by state statute as detailed in “Notes to the Financial Statements,” Note 2. The District has
adopted a cash management plan, which requires it to deposit public funds in public
depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit
Protection Act (“GUDPA”). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units
from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey where the
funds are secured in accordance with the Act. The law requires governmental units to
deposit public funds only in public depositories located in New Jersey.

8. RISK MANAGEMENT: The Board carries various forms of insurance, including but
not limited to general liability, automobile liability and comprehensive/collision hazard and
theft insurance on property and contents, and fidelity bonds.

9. OTHER INFORMATION:

A. Independent Audit — State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified
public accountants or registered municipal accountants. The Board selected the accounting
firm of Suplee, Clooney, & Company. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in
state statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the requirements of The Single Audit Act
of 1996 and the related Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08. The
auditor’s report on the general-purpose financial statements and combining and individual
fund statements and schedules is included in the financial section of this report. The
auditor’s reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the single audit
section of this report.

10. FUTURE GROWTH:  The District continues to monitor its population through
demographic studies in preparation of any needed facility changes.

11. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: We would like to express our appreciation to the
members of the Jackson School Board for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to
the citizens and taxpayers of the school district and thereby contributing their full support to
the development and maintenance of our financial operations. The preparation of this report
could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of our
financial and accounting staff.

Respectfully submitted,
Dr. Stefhen Genco Michelle D. Richardson
Superintendent of Schools Business Administrator/

Board Secretary
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SUuPLEE, CLOONEY & CoMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122

Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535
E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education
Jackson School District

County of Ocean

Jackson, New Jersey 08527

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Jackson School District, County of Ocean, New Jersey as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, audit requirements prescribed by the Division
of Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey, the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the State of New Jersey OMB Circular
15-08 “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid.” Those
standards and provisions require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.



SUPLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the District’'s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Jackson School District, County of Ocean,
New Jersey as of June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management's Discussion and Analysis and budgetary comparison information in Exhibit C-1 through
C-3 and the schedules related to accounting and reporting for pensions in Exhibit L-1 through L-4 be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Jackson School District's basic financial statements. The accompanying
supplementary information schedules such as the combining and individual fund financial statements
and the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance, as listed in the
table of contents, as required by the Uniform Guidance, New Jersey’'s OMB Circular 15-08, “Single
Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid,” and the State of New
Jersey, Department of Education, Division of Finance, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The accompanying supplementary information schedules such as the combining and
individual fund financial statements and the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State
Financial Assistance, as listed in the table of contents, as required by the Uniform Guidance, New
Jersey’s OMB Circular 15-08, “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and
State Aid,” and the State of New Jersey, Department of Education, Division of Finance is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the accompanying supplementary
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a
whole.

The other information, such as the introductory and statistical sections, has not been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we
do not express on opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 18, 2016 on our consideration of the Jackson School District's internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Jackson School District’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

I'4

[,

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS /

Corn. > -
November 18, 2016 PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTANT/NO. 962
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JACKSON TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
JACKSON, NEW JERSEY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
UNAUDITED

The discussion and analysis of Jackson School District’s financial performance provides an overall review of the School
District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look
at the School District’s financial performance as a whole; readers should also review the basic financial statements and
notes to enhance their understanding of the School District’s financial performance.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary Information specified in
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB) Statement No. 34 — Basic Financial Statements and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments issued in June 1999. Certain comparative
information between the current year (2015-2016) and the prior year (2014-2015) is required to be presented in the
MD&A.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for 2016 are as follows:

In the District Wide Statements:

4 Intotal, net position increased $7,279,868 which represents a 12.65 percent increase from 2015.

4 General revenues accounted for $141,031,543 in revenue or 78 percent of all revenues. Program specific
revenues in the form of charges for services and operating grants and contributions accounted for $39,332,197
or 22 percent of total revenues of $141,031,543.

4 Total assets of governmental activities increased by $1,551,138 cash and cash equivalents decreased by
$4,999,964. Receivables increased by $568,836 and capital assets increased by $5,582,265.

4 The School District had $173,083,872 in expenses; $39,332,197 of these expenses were offset by program
specific charges for services, grants or contributions. General revenues of $141,031,543 were adequate to
provide for these programs.

In the Fund Financial Statements:

4 The General Fund had $143,036,728 in revenues and $141,409,291 in expenditures.
4 The District recognized $876,991.00 in proceeds from a Capital Lease
4 Overall the General Fund’s fund balance increased $2,504,428 from 2015.

Using this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements. These statements are
organized so the reader can understand Jackson School District as a financial whole, an entire operating entity. The
statements then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look at specific financial activities.

The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the whole School
district, presenting both an aggregate view of the School district’s finances and a longer-term view of those finances.
Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental funds, these statements tell how services
were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending. The fund financial statements also look at
the School district’s most significant funds with all other non-major funds presented in total in one column. In the case of
Jackson School District, the General Fund is by far the most significant fund.
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Reporting the School District as a Whole

Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

While this document contains most of the funds used by the School District to provide programs and activities, the view
of the School district as a whole looks at all financial transactions and asks the question, “How did we do financially
during 2016?” The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities answers this question. These statements
include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by most private-
sector businesses. This basis of accounting takes into account all of the current year’s revenues and expenses regardless
of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the School District’s net assets and changes in those assets. This change in net assets is
important because it tells the reader that, for the school district as a whole, the financial position of the School district
has improved or diminished. The causes of this change may be the result of many factors, some financial and some not.
Non-financial factors include the School District’s property tax base, current laws in New Jersey restricting revenue
growth, and other factors.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the School District is divided into two distinct kinds of
activities:

4 Governmental activities — All of the School District’s programs and services are reported here
including instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant facilities, pupil
transportation and extracurricular activities.

4 Business-Type Activity — This service is provided on a charge for goods or services basis to recover
all the expenses of the goods or services provided. The Food Service, Child Care Program,
Community School Program, Preschool Program, Digital Media Program, Summer Electives and
STEM Summer Camp Program enterprise funds are reported as business activities.

Reporting the School District’s Most Significant Funds

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial reports provide detailed information about the School District’s funds. The School District uses many
funds to account for a multitude of financial transactions. The School District’s governmental funds are the General
Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Capital Projects Fund, and Debt Service Fund.

Governmental Funds

The School District’s activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of
those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending in the future years. These funds are reported using an
accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can
readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the School
district’s general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps the
reader determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance
educational programs. The relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of
Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is reconciled in the financial statements.

Enterprise Fund
The enterprise fund uses the same basis of accounting as business-type activities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the District-wide
and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found immediately following the fund

financial statements.

The School District as a Whole
Recall that the Statement of Net Assets provides the perspective of the School District as a whole. Net assets may serve
over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The District’s financial position is the product of
several financial transactions including the net results of activities, the acquisition and payment of debt, the acquisition

and disposal of capital assets, and the depreciation of capital assets.

Table 1 provides a summary of the School District’s net assets for 2016.
34, net asset comparisons to fiscal year 2015 are presented.

ASSETS
Current & Other Assets
Capital Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES:
Loss on Refunding of
Long Term Debt
Pension Related
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

LIABILITIES

Long-Term Liabilities

Other Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES:
Pension Related

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted:
Pension related (deficit)
Other (deficit)

TOTAL NET POSITION

In accordance with GASB Statement

TABLE 1
NET POSITION
2016 2015
Governmental Business Governmental Business

Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total
$15,402,636  $3,227,730 $18,630,365 $19,833,763  $2,676,333 $22,510,096
137,117,282 1,225,360 138,342,642 131,535,016 1,281,676 132,816,693
152,519,917 4,453,089 156,973,007 151,368,779 3,958,009 155,326,788
2,986,735 2,986,735 3,265,289 3,265,289
9,945,953 9,945,953 4,165,210 4,165,210
12,932,688 12,932,688 7,430,499 7,430,499
134,511,552 105,942 134,617,494 131,615,975 107,363 131,723,338
9,480,951 393,762 9,874,714 11,697,976 430,231 12,128,207
143,992,503 499,704 144,492,207 143,313,951 537,594 143,851,545
2,090,732 2,090,732 2,850,505 2,850,505
62,704,699 1,225,360 63,930,058 51,059,391 1,281,676 52,341,068
11,576,907 11,576,907 14,169,847 14,169,847
(50,012,184) (50,012,184) (48,648,592) (48,648,592)
(4,900,052) 2,728,026 (2,172,027) (3,945,824) 2,138,738 (1,807,086)
$19,369,370  $3,953,385 $23,322,755 $12,634,822  $3,420,415 $16,055,237

The District’s combined net assets were $23,322,755 on June 30, 2016.
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Table 2 shows changes in net assets for fiscal year 2016. In accordance with GASB Statement 34, revenue and expense
comparisons to fiscal year 2014 is presented to comparatively analyze district-wide data.

TABLE 2
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

2016 2015
Governmental Business Governmental Business
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Operating Grants & Contributions $34,836,898 $1,087,364 $35,924,262 $28,500,405 $1,046,105 $29,546,510
Charges for Services 3,407,934 3,407,934 3,736,939 3,736,939
General Revenues
Property Taxes 85,922,857 85,922,857 83,422,645 83,422,645
Grants (includes State Aid)
and Entitlements 54,144,142 54,144,142 52,450,103 52,450,103
Other Revenues 968,925 22,551 991,477 773,333 22,672 796,005
Transfers 200,000 (200,000)
Disposal of Capital Assets (26,933) (26,933) (3,661) (3,661)
175,845,890 4,517,850 180,363,740 165,342,825 4,605,715 169,948,540
Expenses:
Instruction 98,345,789 98,345,789 91,316,429 91,316,429
Pupils and Instructional Staff 24,335,585 24,335,585 23,538,412 23,538,412
General & School Adm, Central
Serv & Adm Technology 14,355,367 14,355,367 13,740,398 13,740,398
Maintenance 12,501,620 12,501,620 12,537,490 12,537,490
Transportation 10,831,895 10,831,895 10,789,147 10,789,147
Interest on Long-Term Debt 4,150,757 4,150,757 4,512,100 4,512,100
Other 4,590,330 4,590,330 4,568,359 4,568,359
Business-Type 3,972,529 3,972,529 4,497,510 4,497,510
Total Expenses 169,111,343 3,972,529 173,083,872 161,002,334 4,497,510 165,499,844
Change in Net Position 6,734,547 545,321 7,279,868 4,340,490 108,205 4,448,696
Net Position July 1, 12,634,822 3,408,065 16,042,887 8,294,332 3,299,859 11,594,191
Net Position June 30, 19,369,370 3,953,385 23,322,755 12,634,822 3,408,065 16,042,887
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Governmental Activities
As shown in Table 2 the District’s total revenue from Governmental Activities was $175,845,890. Property
taxes made up 49 percent of these revenues. Federal, state, and local grants and state aid accounted for

another 50 percent of revenue.

Sources of Revenue for Fiscal Year 2016 (District-Wide Basis)

1%

O Property Taxes for General
Purposes

H State Aid and Federal/State
Grants

50% 49%

[0 Other Revenues

Also on Table 2, the total cost of Governmental programs and services was $169,111,343. Direct instruction comprises
59 percent of District expenses.

Expenses for Fiscal Year 2016 (District-Wide Basis)

O Instruction Related

5%
6% .
B Maintenance &
Operations
15% O Administration
. [J Student Support
8% 59% Services

M Transportation

7%

O Oother
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Business-Type Activities

Revenues for the District’s business-type activities (food service, child care, community school, pre-school programs,
digital media and summer elective) were comprised of charges for services and federal and state reimbursements.

4 Business Type revenues exceeded expenses by $545,321

¢ Charges for services represent $3,407,934 of revenue. This represents amounts paid by patrons for the various
program services.

¢ Federal and state reimbursement for meals, including payments for free and reduced lunches, and donated
commodities was $1,087,364.

Governmental Activities

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and grants offsetting those
services. Table 3 shows the total cost of services and the net cost of services. The total costs include compensating
absences, unallocated benefits, and depreciation and is reduced by grants and specific state aid. The net cost shows the
financial burden that was placed on the District’s taxpayers by each of these functions. In accordance with GASB
Statement 34, a comparison to fiscal year 2015 is presented.

TABLE 3
NET COST OF SERVICES
Total Cost of Total Cost of Net Cost of Net Cost of
Services Services Services Services
2016 2015 2016 2015

Instruction 98,345,789 $91,316,429 $73,078,417 $71,242,551
Pupils and Instructional Staff 24,335,585 23,538,412 20,023,312 19,804,300

Gen. & School Adm, Central
Serv & Adm Technology 14,355,367 13,740,398 10,658,388 10,689,816
Maintenance 12,501,620 12,537,490 12,501,620 12,537,490
Transportation 10,831,895 10,789,147 9,767,402 9,724,654
Interest on Long-Term Debt 4,150,757 4,512,100 3,654,975 3,934,759
Business-Type 3,972,529 4,497,510 (522,770) (297,883)
Other 4,590,330 4,568,359 4,590,330 4,568,359
Total Expenses $173,083,872 $165,499,844 $133,751,675 $132,204,046

Instruction expenses include the activities involving the interaction between teachers and students in a school
classroom, another location such as a home or hospital, and in other learning situations such as those involving co-
curricular activities.

Support Services includes expenses for pupils and instructional staff providing administrative, technical, and
logistical support to facilitate and enhance instruction. This area includes Attendance and Social Work Services, Health
Services, Child Study Team Services, Curriculum Development, Staff Training, and School Library Services.
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School Administration, General Administration, Central Service & Administrative Technology
includes expenses associated with administrative responsibility for the schools: Supervision of the schools, evaluation of
school staff members, fiscal services, human resources, strategic planning, purchasing, payroll, and management of the
district’s information technology system.

Operation and Maintenance of Facilities involve keeping the physical plant open, comfortable, and safe for
use, and keeping the grounds, buildings, and equipment in effective working condition.

Pupil Transportation includes activities involved with the conveyance of students to and from school, as well as to
and from school activities, as provided by Federal and State law.

Interest on debt involves the transactions associated with the payment of interest and other related charges to debt of
the School District.

Business Type Activities involves the transactions associated with the operation of the Food Service, Child Care,
Community School, Preschool, Extended Enrichment Kindergarten, Digital Mass Media, Summer Elective and STEM
Summer Camp Programs.

Other includes special schools and unallocated depreciation.

The School District’s Funds

All governmental funds (i.e., general fund, special revenue fund, capital projects fund and debt service fund presented in
the fund-based statements) are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Total revenues amounted to
$159,116,941 and expenditures were $162,608,964 The District also had $882,697 in other financing sources consisting
mainly of capital lease proceeds. The net negative change in fund balance for the year was $2,609,326. This was largely
the result of the expenditure of funds for the District’s Capital Projects

As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the District
continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. The following schedules present a summary of the
revenues of the general fund, special revenue fund and debt service fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, and the
amount and percentage of increases and decreases in relation to prior year revenues.

REVENUES (FUND-BASED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS):

Increase/Decrease Percentage

Amount Percentage from 2015 Change
Local Sources $86,969,709 55.81% $2,659,181 3.15%
State Sources 65,684,884 42.15% 2,012,975 3.16%
Federal Sources 3,186,661 2.04% 109,954 3.57%
$155,841,254 100.00% $4,782,109 3.17%

The slight increase in State sources is the result of the State’s increase in state formula aid to school districts.

Federal revenues increased due to the District’s increased participation if the Medical Assistance program (SEMI).
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The following schedule represents a summary of general fund, special revenue fund, and debt service fund expenditures
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, and the percentage of increases and decreases in relation to prior year amounts.

EXPENDITURES (FUND BASED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS)

Increase/(Decrease) Percentage
Amount Percentage from 2015 Change
Current Expense:
Instruction $53,863,036 34.93% $1,686,612 3.23%
Undistributed 84,349,675 54.70% 1,188,257 1.43%
Capital Outlay 2,815,116 1.83% 1,124,637 66.53%
Special Schools 381,465 0.25% (863) -0.23%
Special Revenue 3,312,357 2.15% 90,423 2.81%
Debt Service:
Principal 5,830,000 3.78% 585,000 11.15%
Interest 3,668,778 2.38% (246,300) -6.29%
Total $154,220,426 100.02% $4,427,766 2.96%

Changes in expenditures were the results of varying factors. The increase in Capital Outlay is the result of more capital
projects being undertaken.

General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The School District’s budget is prepared according to New Jersey law, and is based on accounting for certain
transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements, and encumbrances. The most significant budgeted fund is the
General Fund.

Over the course of the year, the District revised the annual operating budget as needed. Revisions in the budget were
made to recognize revenues that were not anticipated and to prevent over-expenditures in specific line item accounts.
Several of these revisions bear notation:

4 The District received $1,260,284 in extraordinary aid, which is state aid for special education students whose
individual program cost exceeds program guidelines; this was $360,284 more than anticipated. There was no guarantee
from the Department of Education that these funds would be available.

€ TPAF, which is the state’s contribution to the pension fund, is neither a revenue item nor an expenditure item to the
District but is required to be reflected in the financial statements. This humber is reflective of the amount of money the
New Jersey Department of Education pays on-behalf of certified staff for pension and FICA purposes. Salaries of regular
instruction continue to increase in proportion with negotiated contracts.

4 The District’s philosophy is to include special education students in regular academic classes whenever possible but
with additional services. Students who may have been originally scheduled for Resource Room classes were scheduled
for Inclusion classes. This necessitates the cost for additional instructional aides and teachers to accommodate resource
students.

Capital Assets
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At the end of the fiscal year 2016, the School District had $137,142,867 invested in land, building, furniture and
equipment, and vehicles. Table 4 shows fiscal year 2016 balances compared to 2015.

Table 4
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) at June 30
2016 2015
Land $15,707,450  $15,707,450
Construction in Progress 12,875,554 4,591,248
Site Improvements 1,155,785 1,090,210
Building and Building Improvements 101,491,599 104,310,815
Machinery and Equipment 5,886,894 5,835,293
Total $137,117,282  $131,535,016

Overall capital assets increased $5,582,264 from fiscal year 2015 to fiscal year 2016. The increase in capital assets is due
primarily to construction in progress from on-going capital projects of the District in FY2016. For more detailed
information, please refer to the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Debt Administration

At June 30, 2016, the School District had $140,690,574 of outstanding debt. Of this amount, $5,467,457 is for
compensated absences; $2,623,040 for various capital leases; $76,235,000 of serial bonds for school construction;
$706,367 in unamortized bond premium and $55,658,710 in net pension liability.

Table 5 illustrates the balances of the District’s various bonds issues outstanding at June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2015.

Table 5
Outstanding Debt at June 30,
2016 2015
2003 ERIP Refunding Bonds $ -0- $655,000
2006 Refunding Bonds 67,720,000 72,210,000
2007 General Obligation Bonds 690,000 1,350,000
2014 Refunding Bonds 7,825,000 7,850,000
Total $76,235,000  $87,236,000

At June 30, 2016, the School District’s overall legal debt margin was $180,614,032.

For the Future
The Jackson School District is in good financial condition presently. The School District is proud of its community
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support of the public schools. During the 2015-2016 school year, the state slightly increased state aid. There is
uncertainty regarding the method and amount of funding the states portion of educational aid in the future. The Board
and Administration continue to find creative means to fill the gap between funding, and the cost to provide education to
Jackson’s students.

In addition, the School District’s system for financial planning, budgeting and internal financial controls are well
regarded. The School District plans to continue its sound fiscal management to meet the challenge of the future. In
conclusion, the Jackson School District has committed itself to financial excellence for many years.

Contacting the School District’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors with a general overview of
the School District’s finances and to show the School District’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have
questions about this report or need additional information, contact Ms. Michelle D. Richardson, Business
Administrator/Board Secretary at Jackson Township Board of Education, Administration Building, 151 Don Connor
Blvd., Jackson, NJ 08527. Please visit our website at www.jacksonsd.org.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements provide a financial overview of
the District's operations. These financial statements present the financial position and
operating results of all funds as of June 30, 2016
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DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the District. These statements include the
financial activities of the overall district, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting
of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the District.
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JACKSON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
Inventory
Restricted assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets:
Land and Construction in progress
Other Capital Assets net of depreciation
Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Premium and Loss on Refunding of Long Term Debt
Pension Related

Total Deferred Outflow of Resources

LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable
Payable to state government
Deposits payable
Unearned revenue
Accrued Interest Payable
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year:
Bonds and capital leases payable
Due beyond one year:
Net Pension Liability
Compensated absences payable
Bonds and capital leases payable
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Related to pensions

NET POSITION:

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Capital projects fund
Debt service fund (deficit)
Other purposes
Unrestricted (deficit)

Total net position

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2016

GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES

$5,979,426.94

BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES

$3,137,682.02

EXHIBIT "A-1"

TOTAL

$9,117,108.96

4,833,580.44 53,061.92 4,886,642.36
36,985.68 36,985.68
4,589,628.22 4,589,628.22
28,583,004.14 28,583,004.14
108,534,277.73 1,225,359.80 109,759,637.53
152,519,917.47 4,453,089.42 156,973,006.89
2,986,734.56 2,986,734.56
9,945,953.00 9,945,953.00
12,932,687.56 12,932,687.56
2,793,907.13 51,008.87 2,844,916.00
20,368.83 20,368.83
22,841.99 4,149.80 26,991.79
57,195.98 338,603.70 395,799.68
407,616.14 407,616.14
6,179,021.14 6,179,021.14
55,658,710.00 55,658,710.00
5,467,457.12 105,941.58 5,573,398.70
73,385,385.03 73,385,385.03
143,992,503.36 499,703.95 144,492,207.31
2,090,732.00 2,090,732.00
62,704,698.59 1,225,359.80 63,930,058.39
684,590.43 684,590.43
(349,598.53) (349,598.53)
11,241,915.37 11,241,915.37
(54,912,236.19) 2,728,025.67 (52,184,210.52)

$19,369,369.67

$3,953,385.47

$23,322,755.14

25



¥1'GG.22€'€2 ¢ I¥'G8E'ES6'E $ L969E69E6T S
00°/88270°9T GS790'80V'E $ SP2e87eE9TT
¥1°898'6.2'L 26'02€'SPS 22 1¥S'vEL'9
TOEVSTEO'TYT T€155°22 0.'T766'800'TVT
(0z'€€6'92) (0z'€€6'92)
SL9.7'T66 1€'T8G'22 71°'G26'896
ST VYIS TITY ST VYIS TITY
82'82€'2€0'0S 82'82€'2€0'0S
00°€€6'022'8 00°€€6'022'8
00v26'T0L' L. $ $ 00V26'T0L°2L  $
(187/9'1G/'€€T) $ T9'69L22S & (Brviv'v.iZ'vET) $
1969225 19692225
G8'9T.T6E G8'9T.T6E
9/°2S0'TET 9/°2S0'TET
8y vvv'v.L2'VET) 8y vvv'v.L2'VET)
(TT9vE610Y) (TT9vE6107)
(¥2'SL6'759'E) (¥2'SL6'759'E)
(T7°€86'0vS) (T7°€86'0vS)
(T0°0) (T0°0)
(18°T0V'29.'6) (18°T0V'29.'6)
(€€7029'T05'2T) (€€7029'T05'2T)
(0¥°295'696'2) (0¥°295'696'2)
(99°028'889'2) (99°028'889°2)
(827209'90€'T) (827209'90€'T)
(25°60.'9T2'8T) (25°60.'9T2'8T)
(ve'6T¥'T0S'E) (ve'6T¥'T0S'E)
(19981'22€'€2) (19981'22€'€2)
(9z'118'v02'9%) $ $ (9z'T18'v0C'9Y) $
Te10L SaNAIY SaNIAIRY
adAi-ssauisng [eluBWIUIBN0D

uonIsod 18N ul sabuey) pue anuanay (asuadx3) 19N

WC-V. 119IHX3

“Juswialess sy} Jo 1ed [eiba)ul ue ae sjusWSNelS [eloueuld ay) 0 sajoN Buiiuedwoooe ay |

Buipua uonisod 19N
Buluuibaq - uonisod 19N

uonisod 19N ui abueyd
swiall [e1oads pue sanuaal [esauab [e1o |
slajsuel |
(3au) 19sse [endes jo fesodsiq
aWooUl SNO3UE||ISIN
palouIsal pie alels pue [eiapa-
paloLISal 10U ple lels pue [eiapa-
90IAI3S 1P 0} PaINS| Saxe ]|
18U ‘sasodind esauab 1oy paing) ‘saxel Auadoid
saxe |
1SaNUBASY [elausD

Sv'Z92'v26'SE  $ 8ZVEGLOV'E $ $ 09T/8'€80'CLT $
TEYIE'L80'T 82 7€6'L0V'E 86'825'2/6'C
TEYIE'L80'T 60',EL'62T'C SG'78€'GZ8'C
6T°261'8/2'T SV YYT LVT'T
¥1'868'9€8'7E Z9°ZrE'TIT'69T
(88°€z2v1ET) 66'69G'€9€'S
¥0'28.'S6Y 82°/GL'0ST'Y
16'8TS'65T 0S'¥9Y'18€
(8£7952'609'95) 6€'952'609'9S
00°€6%'790'T 16'G6€°2/8'C 06°86Y'7756°L
O v¥6'S9t'2 €6°'G/9'G€0'0T
6T 7.V 16S T2'€60'2LEC
68'G/E'06E'T 8€'182'/SL'Y LT'ST6'TZE'S
2T 16¥'08 96°G0T'922'T
0¥'G/8'8T9'G 85'566'8T6'8 ¥€'685'9TY'ST
(26°292'S15'E) 16'292'GvS'e
TT'T96'996 26'799'979'T €G'GTL'TZ8'C
69'268'€69'6 ¥9'2€7'S68' YT 99'9¥9'0LT'8T
TO'8TS'909'YT  $ $ 80'8€5'690'GZ $ 6T TI6LTIVL'GE
SUONNQUIUOD pue EERVES uoneso|v EESIEE]
swelo bunesado 1o} sabreyd 150D
sanuanay sweiboid 108.1pu|

910¢ 0€ INNC

S3AILIAILOV 40 INJWILVIS
10141SI1d TOOHOS dIHSNMOL NOSMOVL

juswuianob Arewnd elo |

saniAnoe adAl-ssauisng e |
swelbold JofeN-uoN

a1ed pliyd
saniAnoe adAl-ssauisng

SalIAOR [elUBWUISA0D 210 |
uoneloaidap paresojeun
199 wia1-6uoT uo 1salalu|
s|jooyos [e1oads
s)yeuaq paredo|ieun
uonenodsuel jidng
aoueUdlURW pue suonelado jue|d
ABoJjouUYD) UONBWIOUI UILUPY/3IIAIBS [eAUBD
S9IAIBS BAIRRNSIUIWPE. |00YdS
S9INIBS dAIFRNSIUIWPE [RIBUID
S92IAIBS Pare|al UooNJIISUl pue Jusapnis
uomny
:s921M8s Loddns
uononasul Jayi0
[eroads
rejnbay
:uononnsu|
1SANIAIOY [RIUSWIUIBACD)

swrelbold/suonoun

26



MAJOR FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Individual Fund financial statements and schedules present more detailed information for the individual
fund in a format that segregates information by fund type.
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ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash with Fiscal Agents
Cash, Capital Reserve
Other receivables

Due from other funds

Receivables from other governments

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Interfund payables
Payable to state government
Deposits payable
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities
Fund balances:

Restricted:
Capital reserve account

Reserved Excess Surplus designated for

subsequent years expenditures
Reserve for Excess surplus
Capital projects fund
Debt service fund
Assigned:
Encumbrances
Committed:

Designated for subsequent years expenditures

Encumbrances

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

EXHIBIT "B-1"

SHEET #1
JACKSON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2016

SPECIAL CAPITAL DEBT TOTAL
GENERAL REVENUE PROJECTS SERVICE GOVERNMENTAL

FUND FUND FUND FUND FUNDS
5,921,409.33 $ $ 58,017.61 $ 5,979,426.94
934,000.00 934,000.00
3,655,628.22 3,655,628.22
15,108.33 10,896.32 26,004.65
1,940,357.24 1,940,357.24
1,539,183.05 306,632.16 2,884,847.26 4,730,662.47
14,005,686.17_$ 317,528.48 2,884,847.26 $ 58,017.61 $ _ 17,266,079.52
585,212.13 $ $ $ 585,212.13
239,275.42 1,624,168.50 1,863,443.92
20,368.83 20,368.83
22,153.74 688.25 22,841.99
934,000.00 57,195.98 991,195.98
1,541,365.87 317,528.48 1,624,168.50 3,483,062.85
3,655,628.22 3,655,628.22
4,505,842.51 4,505,842.51
3,080,444.64 3,080,444.64
576,088.33 576,088.33
10,614.61 10,614.61
555,768.44 555,768.44
666,636.49 47,403.00 714,039.49
684,590.43 684,590.43
12,464,320.30 1,260,678.76 58,017.61 13,783,016.67
14,005,686.17_$ 317,528.48 $ 2,884,847.26 $ 58,017.61 $ _ 17,266,079.52
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TOWNSHIP OF JACKSON SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2016

Total Fund Balances (Brought Forward)

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement
of Net Position (A-1) are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Cost of Assets $219,593,004.35
Accumulated Depreciation (82,475,722.48)

Long term liabilities, including bonds payable, and other related
amounts that are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds.

Net Pension Liability (55,658,710.00)
Compensated Absences (5,467,457.12)
Bonds Payable
Outstanding at June 30, 2016 $ (76,235,000.00)
Less: Unamortized Balance of Refunding Bonds 2,280,367.97

(73,954,632.03)
Capital Leases:
Outstanding at June 30, 2016 $ (2,623,039.58)
Less: Unexpended Proceeds 934,000.00

(1,689,039.58)

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of resources are applicable
to future periods and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Pensions:
Deferred Outflows
Pension related 7,737,258.00
Employer Contribution related to pensions 2,208,695.00

Deferred Inflows:
Pension related

Certain liabilities are not due and payable in the current period

and therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.
Accounts Payable - Pension Related (2,208,695.00)
Accrued Interest Payable (407,616.14)

Net Position of Governmental Activities

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

29

EXHIBIT "B-1"
SHEET #2

$13,783,016.67

137,117,281.87

(136,769,838.73)

9,945,953.00

(2,090,732.00)

(2,616,311.14)

$19,369,369.67




REVENUES:
Local sources:
Local tax levy
Interest on capital reserve
Miscellaneous

Total - local sources

State sources
Federal sources

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current expense:
Regular instruction
Special instruction
Other Instruction
Support services:
Tuition

Student & instruction related services

General administrative services
School administrative services

Central service/Admin information technology
Plant operations and maintenance

Pupil transportation
Unallocated benefits
Special schools
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers In/out

JACKSON TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

EXHIBIT "B-2"

Interest earned on Arbitrage reserve

Capital leases (non-budgeted)

Total other financing sources

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, July 1, 2015

Fund balances, June 30, 2016

SPECIAL CAPITAL DEBT TOTAL
GENERAL REVENUE PROJECTS SERVICE GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUNDS
$  77,701,924.00 $ $ $ 8,220,933.00 $ 85,922,857.00
2,168.74 2,168.74
956,142.29 88,540.68 4,908.62 1,049,591.59
78,660,235.03 88,540.68 4,908.62 8,220,933.00 86,974,617.33
64,169,103.88 244,544.34 3,270,778.42 1,271,236.00 68,955,662.64
207,389.28 2,979,271.99 3,186,661.27
143,036,728.19 3,312,357.01 3,275,687.04 9,492,169.00 159,116,941.24
35,738,782.19 35,738,782.19
15,302,538.39 2,868,108.27 18,170,646.66
2,821,715.53 2,821,715.53
3,545,262.97 3,545,262.97
15,037,922.40 378,666.94 15,416,589.34
1,226,105.56 1,226,105.56
5,321,915.17 5,321,915.17
2,372,093.21 2,372,093.21
10,035,675.93 10,035,675.93
8,699,370.04 8,699,370.04
38,111,329.31 38,111,329.31
381,464.50 381,464.50
5,830,000.00 5,830,000.00
3,668,777.75 3,668,777.75
2,815,116.02 65,581.80 8,388,537.85 11,269,235.67
141,409,291.22 3,312,357.01 8,388,537.85 9,498,777.75 162,608,963.83
1,627,436.97 (5,112,850.81) (6,608.75) (3,492,022.59)
(4,908.62) 4,908.62
5,705.79 5,705.79
876,991.00 876,991.00
876,991.00 (4,908.62) 10,614.41 882,696.79
2,504,427.97 (5,117,759.43) 4,005.66 (2,609,325.80)
9,959,892.33 -0- 6,378,438.19 54,011.95 16,392,342.47
$  12,464,320.30 $ -0- $  1,260,678.76 $ 58,017.61 $ 13,783,016.67

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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JACKSON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

EXHIBIT "B-3"

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds (from B-2)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (A-2) are
different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded
depreciation in the period.

Depreciation expense
Capital outlays
Less: Capital Outlays not capitalized

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position and is not
reported in the statement of activities.

Bonds Paid by Budget

Proceeds from debt issues are a financing source in governmental funds. They are
not revenue in the statement of activities; issuing debt increases long-term liabilities
in the statement of net position.

Capital lease proceeds - Current Year

Repayment of long-term debt is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position and is not
reported in the statement of activities.

Payment of capital lease payable

In the statement of activities, interest on long-term debt is accrued, regardless of when
due. In governmental funds, interest is reported when due. The accrued interest is an
addition in the reconciliation.

Bond Issue costs are reported in the Governmental Funds as expenditures in the year
the bonds are issued. However, on the Statement of Activities the costs are amortized
over the life of the Bonds.

In the statement of activities, only the gain on the disposal of capital assets is reported, whereas
in the governmental funds, the proceeds from a sale increase financial resources. Thus, the
change in net position will differ from the change in fund balance by the cost of the asset removed(-).

District pension contributions are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds when made.
However, they are reported as deferred outflows of resources in the Statement of Net Position because
the reported net pension liability is measured a year before the District's report date. Pension expense,
which is the change in the net pension liability adjusted for changes in deferred outflows and inflows of
resources related to pensions, is reported in the Statement of Activities.

District pension contributions
Less: Pension expense

In the statement of activities, certain expenses, e.g., compensated absences (vacations)
are measured by the amounts earned during the year. In governmental funds, however,
expenditures for these items are reported in the amount of financial resources used (paid).
When the earned amount exceeds the paid amount, the difference is a reduction in the
reconciliation (-). When the paid amount exceeds the earned amount the difference is an
addition to the reconciliation (+).

Change in net position of governmental activities (A-2)

($2,609,325.80)

(5,363,569.99)
$11,269,235.67
(296,467.00)

10,972,768.67

5,830,000.00

(876,991.00)

741,862.14

22,405.22

(207,917.75)

(26,933.20)

$2,131,663.00
(3,495,255.00)

(1,363,592.00)

(384,159.07)

$6,734,547.22

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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OTHER FUNDS
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JACKSON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

ASSETS:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable:
State
Federal
Other
Inventories

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Furniture, machinery and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Interfunds
Unearned revenue
Accounts payable
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due beyond one year:
Compensated absences

Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted

Total net position

JUNE 30, 2016

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND

MAJOR FUNDS

CHILD CARE
FUND

$1,237,763.73

NON-MAJOR
TOTAL

$1,899,918.29

EXHIBIT "B-4"

TOTAL

$3,137,682.02

1,485.81 1,485.81

51,298.61 51,298.61

277.50 277.50

36,985.68 36,985.68

1,237,763.73 1,989,965.89 3,227,729.62
1,989,965.89

2,090,733.49 2,090,733.49

(865,373.69) (865,373.69)

1,225,359.80 1,225,359.80

1,237,763.73 3,215,325.69 4,453,089.42

4,149.80 4,149.80

170,305.82 168,297.88 338,603.70

22,118.72 28,890.15 51,008.87

105,941.58 105,941.58

192,424.54 307,279.41 499,703.95

192,424.54 307,279.41 499,703.95

1,225,359.80 1,225,359.80

1,045,339.19 1,682,686.48 2,728,025.67

$1,045,339.19

$2,908,046.28

$3,953,385.47

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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JACKSON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services:
Daily sales - reimbursable programs
Daily sales - non-reimbursable programs
Special Functions
Tuition - individuals

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales - reimbursable
Cost of sales - non-reimbursable
Salaries
Employee benefits
Other purchase service
Rentals
Supplies and materials
Repairs
Non-instructional equipment
Miscellaneous
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

State Sources
State School Lunch Program

Federal Sources:
National School Lunch Program
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program
National School Breakfast Program

Commissions / Rebates

National food distribution commodities
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Total net position - beginning

Total net position - ending

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND

MAJOR FUNDS

EXHIBIT "B-5"

CHILD CARE NON-MAJOR

FUND TOTAL TOTAL
$1,094,342.32 $1,094,342.32
729,796.26 729,796.26
31,199.07 31,199.07
$1,278,197.19 274,399.44 1,552,596.63
1,278,197.19 2,129,737.09 3,407,934.28
927,538.06 927,538.06
190,864.47 190,864.47
947,238.27 1,056,604.65 2,003,842.92
131,595.73 412,839.61 544,435.34
11,514.59 24,445.69 35,960.28
1,022.64 1,022.64
13,997.96 75,495.10 89,493.06
26,193.51 26,193.51
7,213.15 7,213.15
41,775.24 24,276.38 66,051.62
79,913.94 79,913.94
1,147,144.43 2,825,384.55 3,972,528.98
131,052.76 (695,647.46) (564,594.70)
26,227.45 26,227.45
739,335.11 739,335.11
33,348.38 33,348.38
79,735.67 79,735.67
22,551.31 22,551.31
208,717.70 208,717.70
1,109,915.62 1,109,915.62
131,052.76 414,268.16 545,320.92
914,286.43 2,493,778.12 3,408,064.55

$1,045,339.19

$2,908,046.28

$3,953,385.47
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EXHIBIT "B-6"

JACKSON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND
MAJOR FUNDS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees
Payments to employee benefits

CHILD CARE

FUND

$1,289,694.86

(949,269.90)
(131,401.63)

NON-MAJOR

TOTAL

$2,153,932.05
(1,055,573.90)
(414,261.43)

TOTAL

$3,443,626.91
(2,004,843.80)
(545,663.06)

Payments to suppliers (68,935.52) (1,067,252.28) (1,136,187.80)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 140,087.81 (383,155.56) (243,067.75)
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

State sources 26,586.95 26,586.95
Federal sources 864,156.69 864,156.69
Operating subsidies and transfers to other funds 26,404.11 26,404.11
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 917,147.75 917,147.75
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Capital lease proceeds

Capital Lease payment (93,774.85) (93,774.85)
Purchases of capital assets (4,230.00) (4,230.00)
Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related financing activities (98,004.85) (98,004.85)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 140,087.81 435,987.34 576,075.15
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2015 1,097,675.92 1,463,930.95 2,561,606.87

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2016

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities

$1,237,763.73

$1,899,918.29

$3,137,682.02

Operating income (loss) $131,052.76 (695,647.46) ($564,594.70)
Adjustments to reconciling operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation 79,913.94 79,913.94
Federal commodities 208,717.70 208,717.70
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in other accounts receivable 57.30 57.30
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue 11,497.67 15,752.40 27,250.07
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (2,462.62) (3,051.48) (5,514.10)
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences (1,421.82) (1,421.82)
(Increase) decrease in inventories 12,523.86 12,523.86
9,035.05 312,491.90 321,526.95
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $140,087.81 ($383,155.56) ($243,067.75)

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Intrafund Receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES:
Interfund payable
Intrafund Receivable
Payroll deductions and withholdings
Wages payable - summer payroll
Due to student groups

Total liabilities

NET POSITION:

Held in trust for unemployment
claims and other purposes

Held in trust for awards and
other purposes

Total net position

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

JACKSON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

State Unemployment

EXHIBIT "B-7"

Compensation Private Purpose
Trust Fund Award Fund Agency Funds
$ 495,293.98 $ 3,635.29 $ 3,919,618.56
69,519.80
$ 564,813.78 $ 3,635.29 $ 3,919,618.56
$ $ $ 72,763.52
69,519.80
80,255.20
3,112,431.12
584,648.92
$ $ $ 3,919,618.56
$ 564,813.78 $ $
3,635.29
$ 564,813.78 $ 3,635.29 $ -0-
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ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
Other
Total contributions

Investment earnings:
Interest
Net investment earnings

Total additions

DEDUCTIONS:
Awards granted
Unemployment claims
Total deductions
Change in net position

Net position beginning of year

Net position end of year

JACKSON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

EXHIBIT "B-8"

State Unemployment

Private Purpose Compensation
Award Funds Trust Fund
$ 218,251.35
218,251.35
4.73 616.87
473 616.87
473 218,868.22
75.00
183,282.59
75.00 183,282.59
(70.27) 35,585.63
3,705.56 $ 529,228.15
3,635.29 $ 564,813.78

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NOTE 1:

Jackson Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Township of Jackson School District (the
“District”) have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles. The more significant of the District's accounting policies are
described below:

Reporting Entity

The Township of Jackson School District is a Type Il District located in Ocean
County, New Jersey. The School District is an instrumentality of the State of
New Jersey, established to function as an educational institution. The Board of
Education of the Jackson School District, comprised of seven elected individuals,
is the primary governing authority of the District. A superintendent is appointed
by the Board and is responsible for the administrative control of the District.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity,
are set forth in Statement No. 39 of the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board entitled “Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component
Units” (GASB 39), as codified in Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards.

Organizations that are legally separate, tax-exempt entities and meet all of the
following criteria should be discretely presented as component units. These
criteria are:

1. The economic resources received or held by the separate organization
are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the primary
government

2. The primary government, or its component unit, is entitled to, or has the
ability to otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources of the
organization

3. The economic resources received or held by an individual organization
that the specific primary government, or its component units, is entitle to,
or has the ability to otherwise access, are significant to that primary
government
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NOTE 1:

Jackson Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Reporting Entity (Continued)

The combined financial statements include all funds of the District over which the
Board exercises operating control. The operations of the District include
elementary schools, middle schools and high schools, located in the Township of
Jackson. There were no additional entities required to be included in the
reporting entity under the criteria as described above, in the current fiscal year.
Furthermore, the District is not includable in any other reporting entity on the
basis of such criteria.

Basis of Presentation

The District’'s basic financial statements consist of District-wide statements,
including a statement of net position and a statement of activities, and fund
financial statements which provide a more detailed level of financial information.

District-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of
activities display information about the District as a whole. These statements
include the financial activities of the overall District, except for fiduciary activities.
Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of internal
activities. These statements distinguish generally between the governmental and
business-type activities of the District. Governmental activities generally are
financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange
transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees
charged to external parties.

The statement of net position presents the financial condition of the
governmental and business-type activities of the District at fiscal year end. The
statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for the business-type activity of the District and for each
function of the District's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that
are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly
identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) fees and
charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and
(b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirement of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as
program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. The
comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to
which each governmental function or business segment is self-financing or draws
from the general revenues of the District.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements: During the fiscal year, the District segregates
transactions related to certain District functions or activities in separate funds in
order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. The
fund financial statements provide information about the District’s funds, including
its fiduciary funds. Separate statements are presented for each fund category-
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. The New Jersey Department of
Education (NJDOE) has elected to require New Jersey districts to treat each
governmental fund as a major fund in accordance with the option noted in GASB
No. 34, paragraph 76. The NJDOE as the oversight entity believes that the
presentation of all funds as major is important for the public interest and to
promote consistency among District financial reporting models.

Governmental Funds

General Fund The general fund is the general operating fund of the District and
is used to account for all expendable financial resources except those required
to be accounted for in another fund. Included are certain expenditures for
vehicles and movable instructional or non instructional equipment which are
classified in the capital outlay sub-fund.

As required by the New Jersey Statement Department of Education, the District
includes budgeted capital outlay in this fund. U.S. Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles as they pertain to governmental entities state that general
fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for long-lived
improvements as long as the resources in such cases are derived exclusively
from unrestricted revenues. Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes
are normally derived from State of New Jersey Aid, district taxes, and
appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those that result in the acquisition
of or additions to capital assets for land, existing buildings, improvements of
grounds, construction of buildings, additions to or remodeling of buildings and
the purchase of built-in equipment. These resources can be transferred from
and to the current expense by Board resolution; in certain instances approval by
the County Superintendent of Schools may also be required.

Special Revenue Fund The special revenue fund is used to account for the
proceeds of specific revenue sources from State and Federal Government
(other than those for major capital projects, debt service or proprietary funds)
and local appropriations that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified
purposes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital Projects Funds The capital projects fund is used to account for all
financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital
facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds). The financial
resources are derived from temporary notes or serial bonds that are specifically
authorized by the voters as a separate question on the ballot either during the
annual election or at a special election.

Debt Service Fund The debt service fund is used to account for the
accumulation of resources for, and the payment of principal and interest on debt
issued to finance major property acquisition, construction and improvement
programs.

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Fund The enterprise fund accounts for all revenues and expenses
pertaining to the District's Food Service Child Care, Community School,
Preschool, Digital Media, Summer Electives and STEM Summer Camp programs
operations. These funds are utilized to account for operations that are financed
and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises. The stated
intent is that the cost (i.e. expenses including depreciation and indirect costs) of
providing goods or services to the students on a continuing basis are financed or
recovered primarily through user charges.

Fiduciary Funds

Agency Funds The agency funds are used to account for assets held by the
District on behalf of outside parties, including other governments, or on behalf of
other funds within the District. The agency funds included are as follows:

Payroll and Student Activities Funds These are agency funds used to
account for the assets that the District holds on behalf of others as their agent.
Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of results
of operations.

Private Purpose Trust Funds These trust funds are used to account for assets
donated by individuals that will provide for the payment of awards and other
purposes.

Unemployment Insurance Trust Funds An expendable trust fund used to
account for unemployment compensation claims as they arise.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of Accounting-Measurement Focus

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial
records and reported in the financial statements.

District-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements: The District-
wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Differences in
the accrual and modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of
revenue, the recording of unearned revenue, and in the presentation for
expenses versus expenditures. Ad Valorem (Property) Taxes are susceptible to
accrual as under New Jersey State Statute a municipality is required to remit to
its school district the entire balance of taxes in the amount voted upon or
certified, prior to the end of the school year. The District records the entire
approved tax levy as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the
revenue is both measurable and available.

The District is entitled to receive monies under the established payment schedule
and the unpaid amount is considered to be an “accounts receivable”. Revenue
from grants, entitlements, and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in
which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Governmental Fund
Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and
available.  “Measurable” means the amount of the transactions can be
determined and “available” means collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures
are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and
interest on long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences,
which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General
capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital
leases are reported as other financing sources.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Budgets/Budgetary Control

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the
general, special revenue, and debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to
the county office for approval. In accordance with P.L. 2011, c. 202, which
became effective January 17, 2012, the District elected to move the April 2013
school Board election to the date of the November general election thereby
eliminating the vote on the annual base budget. Budgets are prepared using the
modified accrual basis of accounting. The legal level of budgetary control is
established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are
defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the
minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C. 6A:23-2.2(f)1. Expenditures
may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the line item level. All budget
amendments and transfers must be approved by School Board resolution.
Budget amendments during the year ended June 30, 2016 totaled $41,943.18.

All budget amounts presented in the accompanying supplementary information
reflect the original budget and the amended budget (which have been adjusted
for legally authorized revisions of the annual budgets during the year).

Appropriations, except remaining project appropriations, encumbrances, and
unexpended grant appropriations, lapse at the end of each fiscal year. The
capital projects fund presents the remaining project appropriations compared to
current year expenditures. Formal budgetary integration into the accounting
system is employed as a management control device during the fiscal year. For
governmental funds, there are no substantial differences between the budgetary
basis of accounting and generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) with
the exception of the legally mandated (NJSA 18A:22-44.2) revenue recognition of
one or more deferred State Aid payments for budgetary purposes only due to the
State deferral of such payments into the subsequent budget year and the
accounting treatment of encumbrances in the special revenue fund as described
below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal
budgetary integration in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered
appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Budgets/Budgetary Control (Continued)

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant
accounting budgetary basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from
GAARP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognized encumbrances as
expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis
does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the
presentation of GAAP basis financial records.

Encumbrance Accounting

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other
commitments for the expenditures of resources are recorded to reserve a portion
of the applicable appropriation. Open encumbrances in governmental funds
other than the special revenue fund are reported as assigned fund balances at
fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather
commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue and capital project funds for which
the District has received advances are reflected in the balance sheet as
unearned revenues at fiscal year end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An
entry will be made at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the
appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the outstanding encumbrance
amount as of the current fiscal year end.

Interfunds

Interfund receivables and payables arise from transactions between particular
funds and are considered short term in duration. The interfund transactions are
recorded by all funds affected in the period in which the transactions are
executed and are part of the district's available spendable resources.

Inventories and Prepaid Expenses

Inventories of materials and supplies held for consumption in the governmental
funds are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase and year end
balances are not reported in the financial statements.

Inventories of food and/or supplies in the food service fund are recorded at cost
on a first-in, first-out basis or, in the case of Food Distribution Commaodities, at
stated value which approximates market.

Prepaid expenses which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the
enterprise fund, are recorded as expenditures in the year of purchase.

44



NOTE 1:

Jackson Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital Assets

The District has an established formal system of accounting for its capital assets.
Capital Assets used for governmental purposes, which include land, buildings
and improvements and furniture and equipment, are only reported in the district-
wide financial statements. The District generally defines capital assets as assets
with an initial cost of $2,000.00 or more and an estimated useful life in excess of
one year. Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost.
Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date
received. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the
value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated in the district-wide statements using the straight-
line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated Life

School Buildings 50
Building Improvements 20
Electrical/Plumbing 30
Vehicles 8

Office and Computer Equipment 10
Instructional Equipment 10
Grounds Equipment 15

Compensated Absences

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick
leave) as directed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No.
16 (GASB 16), “Accounting for Compensated Absences.” A liability for
compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and
employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in
accordance with the District’s personnel policy and/or collective bargaining unit
contracts. Upon termination, employees are paid for accrued vacation. Sick
leave benefits provide for ordinary sick pay and begin vesting with the employee
after four years of service.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Compensated Absences (Continued)

The liability for compensated absences was accrued using the termination
payment method, whereby the liability is calculated based on the amount of sick
leave and vacation days that are expected to become eligible for payment upon
termination. The District estimates its accrued compensated absences liability
based on the accumulated sick and vacation days at the balance sheet date by
those employees who are currently eligible to receive termination payments.

For the district-wide statements, the current portion is the amount estimated to be
used in the following year. For the governmental funds in the fund financial
statements, a liability is reported only for to the extent of the amount actually due
at year end as a result of employee resignations/retirements. Compensated
absences are a reconciling item between the fund level and district-wide
presentations.

Fund Equity

Fund balance restrictions are used to indicate that portion of the fund balance
that is not available for expenditures or is legally segregated for a specific future
use. Designation of portions of the fund balances are established to indicate
tentative plans for financial utilization in a future period. The unassigned fund
balances represent the amount available for future budgetary operations.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue in the special revenue and proprietary funds represents funds
which have been received but not yet earned. A corresponding accounts
receivable has also been established for any open encumbrances at year end
which is an allowable practice under generally accepted accounting principles.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported on the
district-wide financial statements. In general, governmental fund payables and
accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in full from
current financial resources are reported as obligations of the funds. However,
contractually required pension contributions and compensated absences that are
paid from governmental funds are reported as liabilities on the fund financial
statements only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current
year. Long term debt is recognized as a liability on the fund financial statements
when due.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Net Position

Net Position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net
investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any borrowing used for the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Net position is
reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either
through the enabling legislation adopted by the District or through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other
governments. The District’'s policy is to first apply restricted resources when an
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net
positions are available.

Fund Balance Restrictions

GASB Statement 54, “Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions” modifies fund balance reporting and clarifies fund type definitions.
This Statement aims to enhance the usefulness of fund balance information by
providing clearer fund balance clarifications that can be applied more
consistently.

Under the standard, in the fund financial statements, governmental funds report
the following classifications of fund balance:

Nonspendable — includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either
not spendable in form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact.

Restricted — includes amounts restricted by external sources (creditors, laws of
other governments, etc.) or by constitutional provision or enabling legislation. The
District reports the Capital Reserve and Excess Surplus as Restricted Fund
Balance.

Committed — includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes.
Committed fund balance is reported pursuant to resolutions passed by the Board
of Education, the District’'s highest level of decision making authority.
Commitments may be modified or rescinded only through resolutions approved
by the Board of Education. The District report amounts Designhated for
Subsequent Year’s Expenditures as Committed Fund balance.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fund Balance Restrictions (Continued)

Assigned — includes amounts that the District intends to use for a specific
purpose, but do not meet the definition of restricted or committed fund balance.
Under the District’s policy, amounts may be assigned by the Business
Administrator. The District reports Year End Encumbrances as Assigned Fund
Balance.

Unassigned - is the residual classification for the general fund. This classification
represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has
not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the
general fund. The general fund should be the only fund that reports a positive
unassigned fund balance amount. In other governmental funds, if expenditures
incurred for specific purposes exceeded the amounts restricted, committed, or
assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned
fund balance.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted fund balance is available, the District considers restricted funds to
have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which committed,
assigned, or unassigned fund balance are available, the District considers
amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds,
and finally unassigned funds, as needed.

Revenues Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and
receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the
exchange takes place. On the modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the
fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available.
Available means the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or
are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities
of the current fiscal year. For the District, “available” means within sixty days of
the fiscal year end.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly
giving equal value in return, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and
donations. On the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in
the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the period in which the income is earned. Revenue from grants,
entittements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied.
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Revenues Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions (Continued)

Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when
the resources are required to be used or the fiscal year when use is first
permitted; matching requirements, in which the District must provide local
resources to be used for a specific purpose; and expenditure requirements, in
which the resources are provided to the District on a reimbursement basis. On
the modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must also
be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered
both measurable and available at fiscal year end: property taxes available as an
advance, interest, and tuition.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the
primary activity of the enterprise fund. For the District, these revenues are sales
in the Enterprise Funds. Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to
provide the service that is the primary activity of the enterprise fund.

Allocation of Indirect Expenses

The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities.
Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Indirect
expenses are allocated to functions but are reported separately in the Statement
of Activities. Employee benefits, including the employer’s share of social
security, workers compensation, and medical and dental benefits, were allocated
based on salaries of the program. Depreciation expense, where practicable, is
specifically identified by function and is included in the indirect expense column
of the Statement of Activities. Depreciation expense that could not be attributed
to a specific function is considered an indirect expense and is reported
separately on the Statement of Activities.

Extraordinary and Special Items

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are unusual in nature and
infrequent of occurrence. Special items are transactions or events that are within
control of management and are either unusual in nature or infrequent in
occurrence. Neither of these types of transactions occurred during the fiscal
year.

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.
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Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions

In the District-Wide Financial Statements for purposes of measuring the net
pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the District’s proportionate share of the New Jersey Public Employees
Retirement System (“PERS”) and the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund
(“TPAF”) and the additions to/deductions from these retirement systems’
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they were
reported by PERS and TPAF. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

In the Governmental Fund Financial Statements the year end Net pension liability
is not required to be reflected. Pension related revenues and expenditures are
reflected based on amounts that are normally expected to be liquidated with
available financial resources for required pension contributions. Expenditures for
PERS are recognized based upon billings made by the State of New Jersey due
April 1% of each fiscal year. TPAF contributions are paid on the District's behalf
by the State of New Jersey. The Governmental Fund Financial Statements
reflects both a revenue and expenses for this pension contribution.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. Currently, the District has
two items that qualify for reporting in this category, deferred amounts from
refunding debt and deferred items that are pension related.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. Currently, the District has only one
item that qualifies for reporting in this category, deferred amounts that are
pension related.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The Board considers petty cash, change funds, cash in banks, and short term
investments with original maturities of three months or less as cash and cash
equivalents. Investments are stated at cost, which approximates market.

Deposits

New Jersey statutes permit the deposit of public funds in public depositories
which are located in New Jersey and which meet the requirements of the
Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA requires a bank
that accepts public funds to be a public depository. A public depository is defined
as a state bank, a national bank, or a savings bank, which is located in the State
of New Jersey, the deposits of which are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation. The statutes also require public depositories to maintain
collateral for deposits of public funds that exceed certain insurance limits. Each
depository participating in the GUDPA system must pledge collateral equal to 5%
of the average amount of its public deposits and 100% of the average amount of
its public funds in excess of 75% of its capital funds. No collateral is required for
amounts covered by FDIC insurance. The collateral which may be pledged to
support these deposits includes obligations of the State and federal
governments, insured securities and other collateral approved by the
Department. When the capital position of the depository deteriorates or the
depository takes an unusually large amount of public deposits, the Department of
Banking and Insurance requires additional collateral to be pledged. Under
(GUDPA), if a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the
collateral of all other public depositories, is available to pay the full amount of the
deposits to the governmental unit

The Township of Jackson School District had the following cash and cash
equivalents at June 30, 2016:

Fund Type Amount
Cash in Bank:
Governmental Funds $ 13,399,197.95
Proprietary Funds 3,137,682.02
Fiduciary Funds 4,621,106.12
Total Cash in Bank $ 21,157,986.09
Less: Reconciling Items (3,966,701.08)

$ 17,191,285.01
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Deposits

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event
of a bank failure, the deposits may not be returned. The District does not have a
specific deposit policy for custodial credit risk other than those policies that adhere
to the requirements of statute. As of June 30, 2016, based upon the coverage
provided by FDIC and NJGUDPA, no amount of the bank balance was exposed to
custodial credit risk. Of the cash on balance in the bank of $21,157,986.09,
$250,000.00 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance and $20,907,986.09
was covered under the provisions of NJGUDPA.

Investments

The types of investments which may be purchased by the District are strictly
limited by the express authority of the N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37 Education,
Administration of School Districts. Permitted investments include any of the
following type of securities:

1. Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations
guaranteed by the United States of America;

2. Government money market mutual funds which are purchased from an
investment company or investment trust which is registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission under the “Investment Company Act of
1940,” 15 U.S.C. 80al et seq., and operated in accordance with 17 C.F.R. §
270.2a7 and which portfolio is limited to U.S. Government securities that
meet the definition of an eligible security pursuant to 17 C.F.R. § 270.2a7 and
repurchase agreements that are collateralized by such U.S. Government
securities in which direct investment may be made pursuant to paragraphs
(1) and (3) of N.J.S.A. 18A:2037. These funds are also required to be rated
by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

3. Any obligation that a federal agency or a federal instrumentality has issued in
accordance with an act of Congress, which security has a maturity date not
greater than 397 days from the date of purchase, provided that such
obligation bears a fixed rate of interest not dependent on any index or other
external factor;
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Investments (Continued)

4.

Bonds or other obligations of the Local Unit or bonds or other obligations
of school districts of which the Local Unit is a part or within which the
school district is located.

Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date not more than 397
days from date of purchase, approved by the Division of Investment of the
Department of Treasury for investment by School Districts;

Local government investment pools that are fully invested in U.S.
Government securities that meet the definition of eligible security
pursuant to 17 C.F.R. § 270a7 and repurchase agreements that are
collateralized by such U.S. Government securities in which direct
investment may be made pursuant to paragraphs (1) and (3) of N.J.S.A.
18A:2037. This type of investment is also required to be rated in the
highest category by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

Deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund
established pursuant to section 1 of P.L. 1977, ¢.281 C. 52:18A-90.4); or

Agreements for the repurchase of fully collateralized securities if:

a. the underlying securities are permitted investments pursuant to
paragraphs (1) and (3) of this subsection;

b. the custody of collateral is transferred to a third party;
C. the maturity of the agreement is not more than 30 days;
d. the underlying securities are purchased through a public depository

as defined in section 1 of P.L. 1970, ¢.236 C. 17:1941); and

e. a master repurchase agreement providing for the custody and
security of collateral is executed.

As of June 30, 2016 the District had no investments.
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NOTE 3: CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land

Construction in Progress

Total Capital Assets not

being depreciated

Site improvements
Buildings & Building Improvements
Machinery & Equipment

Totals at historical cost

Gross Assets (Memo only)

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Site improvements

Buildings & Building Improvements
Machinery & Equipment

Total Depreciation

Total capital assets being

depreciated, net of depreciation

Total Governmental Fund Activities

Beginning Deletions & Ending

Balance Additions Transfers Balance
$15,707,450.00 $15,707,450.00
4,591,248.46 $8,284,305.68 12,875,554.14
20,298,698.46 8,284,305.68 28,583,004.14
6,252,445.60 282,364.00 6,534,809.60
157,557,146.73 843,780.00 158,400,926.73
24,998,211.42 1,562,318.99 (486,266.53) 26,074,263.88
188,807,803.75 2,688,462.99 (486,266.53) 191,010,000.21

209,106,502.21

10,972,768.67

(486,266.53)

219,593,004.35

(5,162,235.28)
(53,246,331.78)
(19,162,918.76)

(216,789.20)
(3,662,996.24)
(1,483,784.55)

(459,333.33)

(5,379,024.48)
(56,909,328.02)
(20,187,369.98)

(77,571,485.82)

(5,363,569.99)

(459,333.33)

(82,475,722.48)

111,236,317.93

(2,675,107.00)

(26,933.20)

108,534,277.73

$131,535,016.39

$5,609,198.68

($26,933.20)

$137,117,281.87
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NOTE 3: CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Beginning Deletions & Ending
Balance Additions Transfers Balance

Proprietary Activities:

Buildings & Building Improvements $1,009,964.99 $1,009,964.99
Machinery & Equipment 1,063,941.00 $23,597.50 $6,770.00 1,080,768.50
Totals at historical cost 2,073,905.99 23,597.50 6,770.00 2,090,733.49

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings & Building Improvements (63,123.25) (25,248.69) (88,371.94)
Machinery & Equipment (729,106.50) (54,665.25) (6,770.00) (777,001.75)

Total Depreciation (792,229.75) (79,913.94) (6,770.00) (865,373.69)
Total Proprietary Fund Activities $1,344,799.49 ($31,067.75) $1,225,359.80

Depreciation expense was charged to functional expenses areas of the

District for Governmental Funds as follows:

Instruction:
Regular
Special Education Instruction
Instruction other
Support services:
Student & Instruction Related Services
Central Service/Adm Tech
Plant Operations & Maintenance
Pupil transportation
Direct Expense of various functions
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($18,836.48)
(1,399.92)
(13,275.16)

(67,111.95)
(282,229.77)
(243,105.30)
(688,265.31)

(4,049,346.11)

($5,363,569.99)




NOTE 4:

Governmental Funds:

Bonds Payable
Unamortized Bond Premium
Compensated Absences
Capital Leases Payable
Pension Liability

Balance June 30, 2016

Jackson Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Bonds are issued by the District pursuant to the provisions of Title 18A,
Education, of the New Jersey Statutes and are required to be approved by the
voters of the municipality through referendum. The proceeds of bonds are
recorded in the Capital Projects Fund and are restricted to the use for which
they were approved in the bond referendum. All bonds are retired in annual
installments within the statutory period of usefulness

School Bonds issued by the District are entitled to and benefit from the provision
of the New Jersey School Board Reserve Act P.L. 1980 c.72. Basically, funds
are held by the State of New Jersey within its State Fund for the Support of Free
Public Schools as a school bond reserve pledged by law to secure payment of
principal and interest due on such bonds in the event of the inability of the issuer
to make payments.

The following is a summary of transactions that affect long-term liabilities for the
year ended June 30, 2016:

Balance Balance Amounts due
June 30, June 30, Within
2015 Additions Reductions 2016 one year
$82,065,000.00 $5,830,000.00 $76,235,000.00 $5,435,000.00
777,003.25 70,636.66 706,366.59 70,636.66
5,083,298.05 384,159.07 5,467,457.12
2,433,910.72 934,000.00 744,871.14 2,623,039.58 744,021.14
47,831,634.00 7,827,076.00 55,658,710.00

$138,190,846.02

$9,145,235.07

$6,645,507.80

$140,690,573.29

$6,249,657.80

Business-Type Funds:

Compensated Absences
Capital Leases Payable

Balance June 30, 2016

Balance Balance Amounts due
June 30, June 30, Within
2015 Reductions 2016 one year
$107,363.40 $1,421.82 $105,941.58 -0-
93,774.85 $93,774.85 0.00 -0-
$201,138.25 $95,196.67 $105,941.58 -0-
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NOTE 4: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Debt Service Requirements:

The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding as of June 30, 2016,
including interest payments on issued debt, are as follows:

Fiscal Year

June 30 Principal Interest Total

FY2017 $5,435,000.00 $3,739,760.00 $9,174,760.00
FY2018 5,700,000.00 3,106,112.50 8,806,112.50
FY2019 6,425,000.00 2,808,725.00 9,233,725.00
FY2020 6,290,000.00 2,481,225.00 8,771,225.00
FY2021 6,555,000.00 2,177,487.50 8,732,487.50
FY2022 6,870,000.00 1,860,487.50 8,730,487.50
FY2023 7,215,000.00 1,510,437.50 8,725,437.50
FY2024 7,585,000.00 1,142,650.00 8,727,650.00
FY2025 7,960,000.00 763,400.00 8,723,400.00
FY2026 8,315,000.00 410,025.00 8,725,025.00
FY2027 7,885,000.00 197,125.00 8,082,125.00

$76,235,000.00

$20,197,435.00

$96,432,435.00
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Jackson Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

General obligation school and refunding bonds payable with
balances are comprised of the following individual issues:

$87,650,000.00 in Refunding School Bonds dated April 13, 2007,
due in remaining annual installments ranging between
$4,490,000.00 and $7,885,000.00 beginning June 15, 2017 and
ending June 15, 2027 with interest from 2.50% to 5.25%

$11,721,000.00 in School Bonds dated August 1, 2006 due in one
remaining annual installment of $690,000.00 due February 1,
2017 with interest of 4.50%

$7,890,000.00 in Refunding School Bonds dated September 11,
2014, due in remaining annual installments ranging between
$25,000.00 and $1,005,000.00 beginning February 1, 2017 and
ending February 1, 2026 with interest from 2.00% to 5.00%
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their outstanding

Amount
Outstanding
June 30, 2016

$67,720,000.00

690,000.00

7,825,000.00

$76,235,000.00




NOTE 4:

Jackson Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Refunding School Bonds

2006 Refunding

The district issued $87,650,000.00 in Refunding School bonds to advance refund
$83,425,000.00 of the districts previously issued and outstanding school bonds.
The reacquisition price exceeded the net carrying amount by $4,225,000.00. This
amount is being amortized over the remaining life of the refunded debt, which is
shorter than the life of the new debt issued. The current year portion charged to
the Statement of Activities was $201,190.48 leaving a balance of $2,213,095.24
which is reflected on the Statement of Net Position as a Deferred Outflow. Under
the escrow agreement, the escrow is irrevocably pledged to the payment of
principal and interest on the refunded bonds. As a result, the $83,425,000.00 of
the refunded obligations are considered to be defeased and the liability for those
bonds has been removed from the financial statements.

2014 Refunding

The district issued $7,890,000.00 in Refunding School bonds to advance refund
$7,716,000.00 of the districts previously issued and outstanding school bonds.
The reacquisition price exceeded the net carrying amount by $74,000.00 which
will be amortized over the remaining life of the refunded debt, which is shorter
than the life of the new debt issued. The current year portion charged to the
Statement of Activities was $6,727.27 leaving a balance of $67,272.73, which is
reflected on the Statement of Net Position as a Deferred Outflow. Under the
escrow agreement, the escrow is irrevocably pledged to the payment of principal
and interest on the refunded bonds. As a result, the $7,716,000.00 of the
refunded obligations are considered to be defeased and the liability for those
bonds has been removed from the financial statements.

Bonds Authorized But Not Issued

As of June 30, 2016, the District had $973.00 in Bonds Authorized But Not
Issued.
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NOTE 4: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Capital Leases Payable

The District is leasing school buses totaling $4,697,442.00 under capital leases.
This capital leases are for terms of five years. The following is a schedule of the
future minimum lease payments under the capital lease and the present value of
the net minimum lease payments at June 30, 2016:

Fiscal Year Ended Governmental
June 30 Funds
2016 $792,617.17
2017 787,664.50
2018 578,156.24
2019 379,354.08
2020 195,118.02
Total Minimum Lease Payments 2,732,910.01
Less: Amount Representing Interest 109,870.43
Present Value of Lease Payments $2,623,039.58

OPERATING LEASES

The District has a commitment to lease technology equipment under an
operating lease that expires on November 15, 2017. The total operating lease
payments made during the year ended June 30, 2016 were $376,836.73. Future
minimum lease payments are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended Governmental
June 30, Funds
2017 $376,836.73
2018 376,836.73
Total Minimum Lease Payments $753,673.46

60



NOTE 5:

Jackson Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016

PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans All required employees of the District are covered by the
Public Employees’ Retirement System, the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund
or the Defined Contribution Retirement Program which have been established by
state statute and are administered by the New Jersey Division of Pension and
Benefits (Division). According to the State of New Jersey Administrative Code,
all obligations of each system will be assumed by the State of New Jersey should
the system terminate. The Division issues a publicly available financial report
that includes the financial statements and required supplementary information for
each of the above systems. These reports may be obtained by writing to the
Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey, 08625 or
on line at www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions.

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) The Teachers’ Pension and
Annuity Fund was established as of January 1, 1955, under the provisions of
N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide retirement benefits, death, disability and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund
is considered a cost-sharing multiple employer plan with a special funding
situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the
State of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the system’s other related non-
contributing employers. Membership is mandatory for substantially all teachers or
members of the professional staff certified by the State Board of Examiners, and
employees of the Department of Education who have titles that are unclassified,
professional and certified.

Public _Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) The Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS) was established as of January 1, 1955 under the
provision of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide retirement, death, disability and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Public Employees’ Retirement
System is a cost-sharing multiple employer plan. Membership is mandatory for
substantially all full-time employees of the State of New Jersey or any county,
municipality, school district, or public agency, provided the employee is not
required to be a member of another state administered retirement system or
other state or local jurisdiction.

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) The Defined Contribution
Retirement Program (DCRP) was established under the provision of Chapter 92,
P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007 to provide coverage elected and certain
appointed officials, effective July 1, 2007. Membership is mandatory for such
individuals with vesting occurring after one year of membership.
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PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Significant Legislation

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L. 2011, c. 78 enacted certain changes in the
operations and benefit provisions of the TPAF and the PERS systems.

As a result of these changes new members of TPAF and PERS, hired on or after
June 28, 2011, will need 30 years of creditable service and have attained the age
of 65 for receipt of the early retirement benefit without a reduction of 1/4 of 1% for
each month that the member is under age 65. New members will be eligible for a
service retirement benefit at age 65.

Funding Changes

Under the new legislation, the methodology for calculating the unfunded accrued
liability payment portion of the employer's annual pension contribution to the
PERS, and TPAF. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) will be
amortized for each plan over an open-ended 30 year period and paid in level
dollars. Beginning with the July 1, 2019 actuarial valuation (July 1, 2018 for
PFRS), the UAAL will be amortized over a closed 30 year period until the
remaining period reaches 20, when the amortization period will revert to an open-
ended 20 year period.

COLA Suspension

The payment of automatic cost-of-living adjustment to current and future retirees
and beneficiaries are suspended until reactivated as permitted by this law.

Vesting and Benefit Provisions The vesting and benefit provisions of PERS
areset by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and 43.3B, and N.J.S.A. 18A:6C for TPAF. All
benefits vest after ten years of service, except for post-retirement healthcare
benefits that vest after 25 years of service.

Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three
years of service credit, become vested for 2% of related interest earned on the
contributions. In the case of death before retirement, members’ beneficiaries are
entitled to full interest credited to the members’ accounts.

Contribution Requirements The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A
and N.J.S.A. 18:66, and requires contributions by active members and
contributing employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be
amended by State of New Jersey legislation.
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PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Contribution Requirements (Continued)

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L. 2011, c. 78 provides for increases in the employee
contribution rates: from 5.5% to 6.5% plus an additional 1% phased-in over 7
years beginning in the first year, meaning after 12 months, after the law's
effective date for TPAF and PERS.

Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both
TPAF and PERS. The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for
cost-of-living adjustments, noncontributory death benefits, and post-retirement
medical premiums. Under current statute the District is a non-contributing
employer of TPAF (i.e. the State of new Jersey makes the employer contribution
on behalf of public school districts.

Three Year Trend Information for PERS

Annual Percentage
Year Ended Pension Cost of APC Net Pension
June 30 (APC) Contributed Obligation
2016 $2,131,663.00 100% -0-
2015 $2,106,087.00 100% -0-
2014 $1,900,230.00 100% -0-

Three Year Trend Information for TPAF (On-behalf Contribution)

Annual Percentage
Year Ended Pension Cost of APC Net Pension
June 30 (APC) Contributed Obligation
2016 $4,222,950.00 100% -0-
2015 $2,938,140.00 100% -0-
2014 $2,240,136.00 100% -0-

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the
District for the years ended June 30, 2016, 2015 and 2014 $4,028,354.88.
$3,777,089.43 and $3,895,688.31 respectively for the employer’s share of social
security contributions for TPAF members, as calculated on their base salaries.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)

At June 30, 2016, the District reported a liability of $55,658,710.00 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was
measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total pension liability used to calculate
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1,
2014 which was rolled forward to June 30, 2015. The District's proportion of the
net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all
participating members, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2015, the District's
proportion was 0.2479451138 percent, which was a decrease of 0.0075284242
percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2014.

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the District recognized pension expense of
$3,496,029.00. At June 30, 2016, the District reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to PERS from the following
sources:

Deferred Deferred
Inflow of Outflow of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $1,327,821.00
Changes of assumptions 5,977,301.00
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments $894,885.00
Changes in proportion and differences between District
contributions and proportionate share of contributions  1,195,847.00 432,136.00
District contributions subsequent to the measurement
date 2,208,695.00

$2,090,732.00

$9,945,953.00
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
(Continued)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

The $2,208,695.00 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to
pensions resulting from school district contributions subsequent to the
measurement date (i.e. for the school year ending June 30, 2016, the plan
measurement date is June 30, 2015) will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2017. Other amounts reported as
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended
June 30 Amount
2016 $1,013,855.00
2017 $1,013,855.00
2018 $1,013,855.00
2019 $1,726,481.00
Thereafter $878,480.00
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
(CONTINUED)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2015 measurement date was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2014, which rolled forward to
June 30, 2015. This actuarial valuation used the following assumptions, applied
to all periods in the measurement.

Inflation 3.04 Percent

Salary Increases
2012-2021 2.15-4.40 Percent (based on age)
Thereafter 3.15-5.40 Percent (based on age)

Investment Rate of Return  7.90 Percent

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014 valuation were based on
the results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2008 to
June 30, 2011. To the extent that actual experience deviates from these
assumptions, the emerging liabilities may be higher or lower than anticipated.
The more the experience deviates, the larger the impact on future financial
statements.

Mortality Rates

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male and Female
Mortality Tables (setback one year for males and females) for service retirement
and beneficiaries of former members with adjustments for mortality
improvements from the base year of 2012 based on Projection Scale AA. The
RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Tables (setback 3 years for males and setback one
year for females) are used to value disabled retirees
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
(CONTINUED)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

Long-Term Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.90% at June 30, 2015) is determined by the State Treasurer, after
consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investments and Division of
Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long-term
expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which
best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by
the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. . Best
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in
PERS's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2015 are summarized in the
following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Cash 5.00% 1.04%
Mortgages 2.10% 1.62%
High Yield Bonds 2.00% 4.03%
Inflation Indexed Bonds 1.50% 3.25%
Broad U.S. Equities 27.25% 8.52%
Developed Foreign Markets 12.00% 6.88%
Emerging Market Equities 6.40% 10.00%
Private Equity 9.25% 12.41%
Hedge Funds/Absolute Returns 12.00% 4.72%
Real Estate (Property) 2.00% 6.83%
Commodities 1.00% 5.32%
U.S. Treasuries 1.75% 1.64%
Investment Grade Credit 10.00% 1.79%
Global Debt ex US 3.50% -0.40%
REIT 4.25% 5.12%

100.00%
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NOTE 6: ACCOUNTING AND_ FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
(CONTINUED)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 4.90% and
5.39% as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. This single blended discount
rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments of 7.9%, and a municipal bond rate of 3.80% and 4.29% as of
June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond
Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal
bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that
contributions from employers will be made based on the average of the last five
years of contributions made in relation to the last five years of actuarially
determined contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments
of current plan members through 2033. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of
return on plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments through
2033, and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit payments
after that date in determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the collective net pension liability to changes in the discount
rate.

The following presents the collective net pension liability of the participating
employers as of June 30, 2015 respectively, calculated using the discount rate as
disclosed above as well as what the collective net pension liability would
be if It was calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point
lower or 1- percentage point higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2015

1% At Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
3.90% 4.90% 5.90%
District's proportionate share
of the pension liability 69,176,966.00 55,658,710.00 44,325,101.00
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
(CONTINUED)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position.

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Public Employees
Retirement System (PERS). The report may be obtained at State of New Jersey
Division of Pensions and Benefits P.O. Box 295 Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0295
http://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions.

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required to be
funded by the State in accordance with N.J.S.A 18:66-33. Therefore, these local
participating employers are considered to be in a special funding situation as defined
by GASB Statement No. 68 and the State is treated as a honemployer contributing
entity. Since the local participating employers do not contribute directly to the plan
(except for employer specific financed amounts), there is no net pension liability or
deferred outflows or inflows to report in the financial statements of the local
participating employers. However, the notes to the financial statements of the local
participating employers must disclose the portion of the nonemployer contributing
entities' total proportionate share of the net pension liability that is associated with the
local participating employer.

The portion of the TPAF Net Pension Liability that was associated with the District
recognized at June 30, 2016 was as follows:

Net Pension Liability:

Districts proportionate share -0-
State’s proportionate share
associated with the District $343,489,498
$343,489,498

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2014. The net pension liability associated with the District
was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the
pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating school districts
and the State, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2015, the proportion of the TPAF
net pension liability associated with the District was .5434593208% which was an
increase of .0139277638 percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2014.

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the District recognized on-behalf pension
expense and revenue of $20,973,126 for contributions provided by the State.

69


http://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions

NOTE 6:

Jackson Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
(CONTINUED)

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2015 measurement date was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2014, which was rolled forward
to June 30, 2015. The total pension liability for the June 30, 2014 measurement
date was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2014. This actuarial
valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the
measurement:

Inflation rate 2.50%
Salary increases:
2012-2021 Varies based on experience
Thereafter Varies based on experience
Investment rate of return 7.90%

Mortality Rates

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Health Annuitant Mortality Table for
Males or Females, as appropriate, with adjustments for mortality improvements
based on Scale AA. Pre-retirement mortality improvements for active members
are projected using Scale AA from the base year of 2000 until the valuation date
plus 15 years to account for future mortality improvement. Post-retirement
mortality improvements for non-disabled annuitants are projected using Scale AA
from the base year of 2000 for males and 2003 for females until the valuation
date plus 7 years to account for future mortality improvement. The actuarial
assumptions used in the July 1, 2014 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2009 to June 30, 2012.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.90% at June 30, 2015) is determined by the State Treasurer, after
consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investments and Division of
Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long-term
expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which
best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by
the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in
TPAF's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2015 are summarized in the table
on the following page:
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Jackson Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016

NOTE 6: ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
(CONTINUED)

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return (Continued)

Long-Term
Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
US Cash 5.00% 0.53%
US Governement Bonds 1.75% 1.39%
US Credit Bonds 13.50% 2.72%
US Mortgages 2.10% 2.54%
US Inflation-Indexed Bonds 1.50% 1.47%
High Yield Bonds 2.00% 4.57%
US Equities Markets 27.25% 5.63%
Foreign-Delveloped Equity 12.00% 6.22%
Emerging Market Equities 6.40% 8.46%
Private Real Estate Property 4.25% 3.97%
Timber 1.00% 4.09%
Farmlands 1.00% 4.61%
Private Equity 9.25% 9.15%
Commodities 1.00% 3.50%
Hedge Funds - Multi Strategy 4.00% 4.59%
Hedge Funds - Equity Hedge 4.00% 5.68%
Hedge Funds - Distressed 4.00% 4.30%

100.00%
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NOTE 6:

Jackson Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
(CONTINUED)

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 4.13% and
4.68% as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. This single blended discount
rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments of 7.9%, and a municipal bond rate of 3.80% and 4.29% as of
June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond
Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal
bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that
contributions from employers will be made based on the average of the last five
years. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current
plan members through 2027. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on
plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments through 2027, and
the municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit payments after that date
in determining the total pension liability,

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

Because the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability is zero,
consideration of potential changes in the discount rate is not applicable to the
District.

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in
the separately issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Teachers
Public and Annuity Fund (TPAF). The report may be obtained at State of New
Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits P.O. Box 295 Trenton, New Jersey
08625-0295 http://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions
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NOTE 7:

NOTE 8:

Jackson Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016

GASB 45 — OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

P.L. 1987, c. 384 and P.L. 1990, c.6 required Teachers’ Pensions and Annuity
Fund (TPAF) and the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS),
respectively, to fund post-retirement medical benefits for those state employees
who retire after accumulating 25 years of credited service or on a disability
retirement. P.L. 2007, c.103 amended the law to eliminate the funding of post-
retirement medical benefits through the TPAF and PERS. It created separate
funds outside of the pension plans for the funding and payment of post-
retirement medical benefits for retired state employees and retired educational
employees. As of June 30, 2015, there were 107,314 retirees receiving post-
retirement medical benefits, and the State contributed $1.25 billion on their
behalf. The cost of these benefits is funded through contributions by the State in
accordance with P.L. 1994, c.62. Funding of post-retirement medical benefits
changed from a pre-funding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in Fiscal
Year 1994,

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992, c.126, which
provides employer paid health benefits to members of PERS and the Alternate
Benefit Program who retired from a board of education or county college with 25
years of service. The State paid $214.1 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for
19,056 eligible retired members in Fiscal Year 2015.

The State will set the contribution rate based on the annual required contribution
of the employers (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with
the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) of the plan over a
period not to exceed thirty years. The State’s contributions to the State Health
Benefits Program Fund for TPAF retirees’ post-retirement benefits on behalf of
the School Commission for the years ended June 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013 were
$3,777,089.00, $3,672,980.00 and $3,945,737.00 respectively, which equaled
the required contributions for each year. The State’s contributions to the State
Health Benefits Program Fund for PERS retirees’ post-retirement benefits on
behalf of the School Commission was not determined or made available by the
State of New Jersey.

LITIGATION

The District’'s counsel advises that there is no litigation, pending litigation, claims,
contingent liabilities, unasserted claims or assessments or statutory violations
which involve the School District and which might materially affect the District's
financial position.
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NOTE 9:

NOTE 10:

Jackson Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016

CONTINGENCIES

The District receives financial assistance from the State of New Jersey and the
U.S. Government in the form of grants. Entitlement to the funds is generally
conditional upon compliance with terms and conditions of the grant agreements
and applicable regulations, including the expenditure of the funds for eligible
purposes. The State and Federal grants received and expended in the 2015-
2016 fiscal year were subject to the the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB
Circular 15-08 which mandates that grant revenues and expenditures be audited
in conjunction with the District's annual audit if expenditures for federal or state
programs exceed $750,000.00 Findings and questioned costs, if any, relative to
federal and state financial assistance programs are discussed in the Single Audit
Section, Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. In addition, all grants and
cost reimbursements are subject to financial and compliance audits by the
grantors. The District's management does not believe any such audit would
result in material amounts of disallowed costs.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage
to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and
natural disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance The District maintains insurance coverage
covering each of those risks of loss. The administration believes such coverage
is sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses to the District. Settled
claims have not exceeded the insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal
years.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance The District has
elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under
the “Benefit Reimbursement Method”. Under this plan, the District is required to
reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its
former employees and charged to its account with the State. The District is billed
guarterly for amounts due to the State. The following is a summary of District
contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the State for benefits
paid and the ending balance of the District’s fiduciary trust fund for the current
and previous two years:

Year Ended Employee Amount Ending

June 30, Interest Contributions Reimbursed Balance
2016 $616.87 $218,251.35 $183,282.59 $564,813.78
2015 497.17 234,853.56 125,876.46 529,228.15
2014 467.55 229,551.08 229,284.98 420,251.05
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NOTE 11:

Jackson Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g. unused vacation and sick
leave) as directed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No.
16 (GASB 16), "Accounting for Compensated Absences". A liability for
compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and
employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in
accordance with the District's personnel policy. Upon termination, employees are
paid for accrued vacation. The District's policy permits employees to accumulate
unused sick leave and carry forward the amount to subsequent years. Upon
retirement, employees shall be paid by the District for the unused sick leave in
accordance with the Districts agreements with the various employee unions.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the governmental fund types
are recorded in the district - wide statement of net position. As of June 30, 2016,
a liability existed for compensated absences for governmental fund-types in the
district- wide statement of net position of $5,467,457.12.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the proprietary fund types is
recorded within those funds as the benefits accrue to employees. As of June 30,
2016 a liability existed for compensated absences in the proprietary funds of
$105,941.58.

For additional descriptive information see Note 1, Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies.
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NOTE 12:

Jackson Township School District

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016

FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED

General Fund The table below reflects the District's Fund Balance at June 30,

2016 on both a GAAP (Exhibit B-1) and Budgetary (Exhibit C-1) basis including

is not recognized:

Restricted:
Excess Surplus:
Designated for Subsequent
Year's Expenditures
Current Year
Capital Reserve
Committed:
Designated for Subsequent
Year's Expenditures
Assigned:
Encumbrances
Unassigned

Budgetary
Basis

4,505,84251 $
4,977,649.84
3,655,628.22

666,636.49

555,768.44
2,990,209.80

the required adjustment related to the last state aid payment which under GAAP

GAAP
Adjustment Basis

$ 4,505,842.51
(1,897,205.20) 3,080,444.64
3,655,628.22

666,636.49

555,768.44
(2,990,209.80)

$

17,351,735.30  $

(4,887,415.00) $  12,464,320.30

Debt Service Fund Of the $58,017.61 in Debt Service Fund Balance at
restricted in accordance with N.J.S.A.

June 30, 2016, $10,614.61 is

18A:7F-41c(2) and $47,403.00 is assigned and has been appropriated and
revenue for the year

included as anticipated
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NOTE 13:

Jackson Township School District

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016

CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS — BUDGETARY BASIS

Calculation of Excess Surplus In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, as

amended by P.L. 2007, c73 (S1701), the Restricted Fund Balance - Excess
Surplus is a required calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive
Educational Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New Jersey school
districts are required to reserve General Fund fund balance at the fiscal year end
of June 30 if the District did not appropriate a required minimum amount as
budgeted fund balance in the subsequent year’s budget.

General Fund Expenditures:
Fiscal Year Ended, June 30 2016

Increased by:

Transfer from Capital Outlay to Capital Projects

Less:

Reimb. TPAF Social Security Contributions
Reimb. TPAF Pension Contributions
Capital Leases

Adjusted General Fund Expenditures
Excess Surplus Percentage

Increased by:

Extraordinary Aid (unbudgeted)

Non-Public Transportation Aid (unbudgeted)
SEMI - Cost Settlement

Maximum Unreserved/Undesignated
General Fund Balance

Actual Unassigned
General Fund Balance

Excess Surplus

Recapitulation of Excess Surplus, June 30, 2016:
Restricted for Excess Surplus - Designated for

Subsequent Year's Expenditure
Restricted for Excess Surplus
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$4,028,354.88
9,251,317.00
876,991.00

$141,409,291.22

$360,284.00
56,497.00
28,376.23

$141,409,291.22

14,156,662.88

$127,252,628.34
2.00%

$2,545,052.57

445,157.23

$2,990,209.80

7,967,859.64

$4,977,649.84

$3,946,312.70
4,977,649.84

$8,923,962.54




NOTE 13:

NOTE 14:

NOTE 15:

Jackson Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016

CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS — BUDGETARY BASIS (CONTINUED)

Based on the preceding calculation, as of June 30, 2016, $5,006,026.07 is
reported as Restricted Fund Balance Excess Surplus and is required to be
appropriated for property tax relief in the 2017-18 budget. $4,505,842.51 is
reported as Restricted Fund Balance Excess Surplus Designated for Subsequent
Year's Expenditure and is required to be appropriated for property tax relief
in the 2016-17 budget.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The following interfund balances remained on the balance sheet at June 30,
2016:

Interfund Balance

Fund Receivable Payable
General Fund $ 1,940,357.24 $

Special Revenue Fund 239,275.42
Capital Projects Fund 1,624,168.50
Enterprise Fund 4,149.80
Fiduciary Fund 72,763.52

$ 1,940,357.24 $ 1,940,357.24

All balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that short-term loans
were disbursed and payments between funds were received.

CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A capital reserve account was established by the Township of Jackson Board of
Education in the amount of $1.00 in the 2000-2001 school year for the
accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal
years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its
activity is included in the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in
the district’'s approved Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of
the LRFP to the Department of Education, a district may increase the balance in
the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget
certified for taxes or by transfer by Board resolution at year end (June 1 to June
30) of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line item appropriations, or
both. A district may also appropriate additional amounts when the express
approval of the voters has been obtained by either a separate proposal at budget
time or by a special question at one of the four special election dates authorized
by N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-14.1(g), the balance in the
account cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital
projects in its approved LRFP.
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NOTE 15:

NOTE 16:

NOTE 17:

Jackson Township School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016

CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT (CONTINUED)

The activity of the capital reserve for the July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 fiscal year
is as follows:

Balance, June 30, 2015 (Budgetary Basis) $ 1,653,459.48
Interest Earnings 2,168.74
Deposits:
Board Resolution dated 06/21/16 $ 2,000,000.00
2,000,000.00
Balance, June 30, 2016 (Budgetary Basis) $ 3,655,628.22
INVENTORY

Inventory in the Food Service Fund at June 30, 2016 consisted of the following:
Food and Supplies $36,985.68

The value of Federal donated commodities as reflected on Schedule A (required

by the Single Audit Act Amendment of 1996) is the difference between market

value and cost of the commodities at the date of purchase and has been included
as an item of non-operating revenue in the financial statements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Board of Education has evaluated subsequent events occurring after the
financial statement date through November 18, 2016 which is the date the
financial statements were available to be issued. The District has determined
that there are no material subsequent events that need to be disclosed, except
as follows:

On September 28, 2016 the District issued $27,150,000.00 in Refunding School
Bonds to refund a portion of the $87,650,000.00 in School Refunding Bonds
issued April 13, 2006. These bonds will be repaid over four years and bear
interest ranging from 3.00 to 5.00%.
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
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EXHIBIT "C-2"

JACKSON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

BUDGET
ORIGINAL TRANSFERS/ FINAL VARIANCE
BUDGET AMENDMENTS BUDGET ACTUAL FINAL TO ACTUAL
REVENUES:
State sources $ 205,507.00 $ 39,734.00 $ 245,241.00 $ 24454434 $ (696.66)
Federal sources 2,855,285.00 201,794.78 3,057,079.78 2,979,271.99 (77,807.79)
Other sources 146,006.70 146,006.70 88,540.68 (57,466.02)
Total revenues 3,060,792.00 387,535.48 3,448,327.48 3,312,357.01 (135,970.47)
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction:
Salaries of teachers 269,725.00 1,943.00 271,668.00 271,668.00
Other salaries 65,443.00 29,480.50 94,923.50 94,923.50
Purchased professional - technical services 6,554.00 6,554.00 6,554.00
Purchased services 4,035.00 (4,035.00)
Other purchased professional services 171,411.00 (22,149.00) 149,262.00 129,915.16 19,346.84
Contracted Services 8,094.00 8,094.00 8,094.00
Tuition 1,986,207.00 41,747.00 2,027,954.00 2,027,954.00
Supplies and materials 211,521.00 136,921.05 348,442.05 304,657.60 43,784.45
Textbooks 23,117.00 68.00 23,185.00 22,163.01 1,021.99
Other Objects 2,300.00 4,088.14 6,388.14 2,179.00 4,209.14
Total instruction 2,733,759.00 202,711.69 2,936,470.69 2,868,108.27 68,362.42
Support services:
Salaries of Supervisors of Instruction 50,467.00 (1,967.00) 48,500.00 48,500.00
Other Salaries 8,022.00 95,037.08 103,059.08 78,559.08 24,500.00
Personal services - employee benefits 94,293.00 3,333.00 97,626.00 95,751.75 1,874.25
Purchased professional - educational services 113,314.00 21,857.18 135,171.18 111,343.40 23,827.78
Travel 481.00 (481.00)
Other purchased services 22,003.00 2,020.19 24,023.19 22,542.19 1,481.00
Supplies and materials 4,502.00 9,448.69 13,950.69 7,498.11 6,452.58
Miscellaneous expenditures 4,827.00 9,645.41 14,472.41 14,472.41
Total support services 297,909.00 138,893.55 436,802.55 378,666.94 58,135.61
Facilities acquisition and construction services:
Instructional equipment 29,124.00 15,930.24 45,054.24 44,362.57 691.67
Non-Instructional equipment 30,000.00 30,000.00 21,219.23 8,780.77
Total facilities acquisition and construction serv. 29,124.00 45,930.24 75,054.24 65,581.80 9,472.44
Total expenditures 3,060,792.00 387,535.48 3,448,327.48 3,312,357.01 135,970.47

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures
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JACKSON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION

NOTE TO RSI

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Note A - Explanation of difference between budgetary inflows and outflows
and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

Sources/inflows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue" from the budgetary comparison
schedule

Difference - budget to GAAP:

State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes, not recognized for
GAAP statements until the subsequent year

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in the current year,

previously recognized for budgetary purposes.

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances - governmental funds.

Uses/outflows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total expenditures" from the
budgetary comparison schedule.

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds
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GENERAL
EFUND

$143,015,213.19

(4,887,415.00)

4,908,930.00

EXHIBIT "C-3"

SPECIAL
REVENUE
FUND

$3,312,357.01

$143,036,728.19

$3,312,357.01

$141,409,291.22

$3,312,357.01

$141,409,291.22

$3,312,357.01




REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART llI
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SCHEDULES RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PENSION (GASB 68)

99




%¢c6'LYy
%80°¢S
%cL'8Y

AJ[IgerT] uoisusd
[e101 8y1 Jo
abejuaolad e se
uonisod 1©N
Areronpiq ueld

o771 LIGIHX3

‘a|gejiene awo02aq Aay) se pauodal ag [IM Sieak [euonippy "puail Jeak usl Moys 0] papusalul Si 3|NpPayds 810N

%S8°0€E 89/'c28'9T 0T.'8G9'GS %8ETTSY6.1720 GT0C
%88°08¢ ¥,0'620°LT v€9'1€8 LY %08ESE.L1SSC 0 ¥T0¢C
%G8'8.¢ GG0'G8C'LT $ 1/2'66T'8Y $ %6296E€6TCSC0 €T0¢
loJAed aaAojdw3 lloiRed (1essy) Apger (19ssy) Apger ‘o aung
-palanod s Jo 9akojdw3-palano)d uoisuad 19N ayl uolisuad 19N auy1 Jo Buipu3g
abejuaoiad e se s,0us1g Jo aleys aseys uomiodoid JeaA |easiH
(1ossvy) Aljgen areuoinuodold s,1011SIq
uoisuad 19N auyi jo sJousig
areys uomiodoid
s,ous1Ig

SHVIA N3IL 1SV
W3ALSAS LNINTHI1IH STIAOTdNE DI11dNd

ALITIGVIT NOISN3Id L3N dHL 40 J4VHS 31VNOILH0d0dd S.101d1S1d 3H1L 40 371Nd3HDS

10141S1d TO00HJS NOSHOVI 40 dIHSNMOL

100



%971°CT
%cSCT
%9T'TT

[[QLEE]
aakojdw3
-palano)d

J0 abriuadiad ©
Se suonnguuo)d

«¢ 1 LI19IHX3

"a|qe|reAe awo02aq Aay) se pauodal aq ||IM Sieak [euonippy "puall Jeak us) Moys 0] papualul Si 8|NPayds 810N

v€L'0€S'LT
89/'228'9T
$ ¥2,0'620°LT

[loiRed
aakojdw3
-palano)d
sousia

-0- €99'TET'C
-0- /80'90T'¢
$ -0- $ 0€2'006'T $
(Ss99x3) suonnqmuod
Aauaiogaq palinbay
uonnguuo) Alrenioenuo)

ayl 0] uonejey
ul suonngIuo)D

SlesA ualise]
WAISAS 1UalaInay Saakodwig algnd
SUORNGIIUOD SJoMISIA dUj JO NPayds
OIISIq [00U2S UOSYoer Jo AIJSUMO] JO dIJSUMO |

€99'TETC
/80'90T‘C
0€2°'006'T

uonnquuo)
palinbay
Ajrenioenuod

$

9T0¢
ST0C
v10¢

0€ aung
Buipu3
JeaA [eoslq

101



%T.'8¢
%v9'EE
%9.°€E

AljIger uolsusd
[e101 8y} Jo
abejusolad e se
uonisod 18N
Arelonpi4 ue|d

«&- T LIGIHX3

‘9|qe|reAr awooaq Asy) se panuodal aq ||Im Sieak [euonippy ‘puall Jeak usl Moys 01 papualul Si 3|NPayds 10N

-0- 20v'06.'2S -0-
-0- 1€2'811'2S -0-
-0- $ €£8'789'2S $ -0-
[0IRed saAo[dwig floiked (18ssV) AierT
-palanod s Jo aakojdw3-paliano) uoisuad 18N ay1
abejuadlad e se s,ouisiq JO areys
(1essvy) Aupqer areuoiodold
uoisuad 18N 8y} Jo sJoulsIa

aleys uoniodoid
s,101181g

SHVIA N3IL 1SV
AdNN4 ALINNNY ANV NOISN3d SY3HOVIL

%662.6E€0075°0
%0/55T€S625°0
$ %662.6€0075°0

(ESSYRSIEER]
uoisuad 18N ay1 Jo
aleys uoniodoid

s0u1SIq

ALITIEGVYIT NOISN3d 13N 3FH1L 40 JHVHS F1VNOILHOd0Odd S.10141S1d IH1L 40 I1NA3IHDS

12141S1d TOOHJS NOSHOVE 40 dIHSNMOL 40 dIHSNMOL

GT0C
¥T0Z
€T0C

0€ aung
Buipuz
lea A [eosiH

102



EXHIBIT "L-4"

JACKSON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULES RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PENSION (GASB 68)
NOTE TO RSI I
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Public Employees Retirement System

Change in benefit terms: None

Change in assumptions: The discount rate changed from 5.39% to 4.90% as of
June 30, 2015.

Teacher Pension and Annuity Fund

Change in benefit terms: None

Change in assumptions: The discount rate changed from 4.68% to 4.13% as of
June 30, 2015.
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
DETAIL STATEMENTS
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JACKSON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

EXHIBIT "F-1"

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE - BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
Miscellaneous
Total revenues
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses:
Construction services
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance
Fund balance - beginning
Fund balance - ending
Fund Balance - budgetary basis
Current Year Encumbrances

Less: ROD Grants not recognized under GAAP

Fund Balance - GAAP basis (B-1)

Expenditures - budgetary basis
Add: prior year encumbrances

Less:

Current year encumbrances

Expenditures - GAAP basis (B-2)

110

__ 8490862
4,908.62

489,555.96
489,555.96
(484,647.34)
(4,908.62)
(4,908.62)
(489,555.96)
1,365,585.41

$876,029.45

$876,029.45
$684,590.43
($299,941.12)

$1,260,678.76

$489,555.96
8,583,572.32
9,073,128.28

__$684500.43

684,590.43



L00CA4d
S00CA4
%00°00T
%/,9°6T-

2T LS T96'6TS
(88°25t'888'1)

00'000°058'v2$
00'80.‘85/'GT$
00'80.'8G/'ST$

¢0/ST/v0

¢0/.0/90

Yv120c

08'0$ 08'0%

ZT'LPS'T96'6T ZE9YS'T96'6T ZE9YS'T96'6T
29'656'82E'T 29°656'82€'T 29656'82€'T
/8'068'9G0°LT 0v'068°950°LT 0¥'068°950°LT
€9'969'G/S'T 0£'969'G/S'T 0£'969'G/S'T

ZTU'LyS'TI6'6T

ZT'LPS'T96'6T

ZT'LPS'T96'6T

21'652'048°0T
00262'160°6$

1s0D
pazioyiny
pasinay

Z1'G52'048°0T
00'262'160°6$

SERI

TeaA Juany

Z1'G52'048°0T
00'262'160°6$

Spolad Jold

alep uonajdwod 196.1e) pasiney

alep uonajdwod 18b.er feuibuo

uons|dwod abeiuadiad

150D pazuoyiny [eulbliO Jano asealdu| abejuadlad

1S0D pazuoyiny pasiney
1S0D pazuoyiny [euonippy
100 pazuoyiny [eulbuo
panss| spuog

pazioyiny spuog

a1eQ uoneziloyiny puog
are( el

Jaquinp 108loid

:uonewJoyul 193loid feuonippy

salnjipuadxa (Japun) JaA0 sanuanal Jo (Aoualolap) ssaaxg

sainypuadxa [e10]
saseyaind juswdinb3
S9JIAI3S UONONIISU0D
S92IAIS [B21UYI3] pue [euolssajold paseyaind

:sas Buroueulq JaYy10 pue saimipuadx3

SanuaAal [e1o |
sJajsuel] pue spaadolid puog
Wwel9 DS - S82IN0S eI

:S921N0S OC_OCGC_H_ 19Y10 pue sanusanay

111

910¢ '0€ INNC A3IANT "YVIA IHL HO4
TOOHOS AYVLINIWNITd M3N V 40 NOILONHLSNOD
SISVYg AYVY139dNg - SNLVLS 103r0dd ANV IONVIVE LO3C0"d 'STHANLIANIAXT 'SINNIATY LOIC0™Ud 40 ITNAIHIS AHVINNNS
dNN4d S103drodd V.1IidvD
13141S1d TOOHJS dIHSNMOL NOSHOVI

«eT-d. 1IdIHX3



€T0CAd

900¢A4

%0058
%TC'8

v¥°LST'80€'9.$
Yv'LST'28L°G$
00'000°T2S'0L$
00°€€0'8G.L'81$
00°€€0'8G.'8Y$
¢0/ST/v0
€0/20/v0
v.2c0c

¥¥'LST'80E°9.L

00°€88'61€$

Y¥'¥.2'886'GL

00'€88'61€$

Y¥'¥.2'886'GL

LE86C'6178'T
LS TYE'STZ LS
TS'899°296'TT
66'8¥8'G.2'S

vy LST'80€'9L

LE862'6178'T
82'¢S.'T90'LS
TS5'899°296'TT
82'GSS'60T'G

v¥'LGT'80€'9.L

LE862'6178'T
82'¢S.'T90'LS
TS'899°296'TT
82'GSS'60T'G

v¥'LGT'80€'9.L

v¥'06T'SYS'vS
00°296'29.'12$

1s0D
pazioyiny
pasinay

Y¥'06T'SYS'vS
00°296'29.1¢$

SERI

TeaA Juany

Y7 06T'SYS'vS
00°,96'29.'12$

Spolad Jolid

alep uonajdwod 196.1e) pasiney

alep uonajdwod 18b.er feuibuo

uons|dwod abeiuadiad

150D pazuoyiny [eulbliO Jano asealdu| abejuadlad

1S0D pazuoyiny pasinay
1S0D pazuoyiny [euonippy
100 pazuoyiny [eulbuo
panss| spuog

pazioyiny spuog

a1eQ uoneziloyiny puog
are( el

Jaquinp 108loid

:uonewJoyul 193loid feuonippy

salnjipuadxa (Japun) JaA0 sanuanal Jo (Aoualolap) ssaaxg

sainypuadxa [ejo L
saseyaind juswdinbg
S92IAI3S UONONIISU0D
sjuawanoldwi pue pueT
S92IAIS [B21UYI3] pue [euolssajoid paseyaind

:sas Buroueulq Jay10 pue saimipuadx3

SanuaAal [e1o |
sJajsuel] pue spaadolid puog
el DS - S82IN0S 3reIs

:S921N0S OC_OCGC_H_ 19Y10 pue sanusanay

112

910¢ '0€ INNC A3IANT "YVIA IHL JO4
JTOOHOS HOIH M3AN V aTiNg OL LNIWJINO3 ANV ANV 40 NOILLISINOJV
SISVYg AYVY139dNg - SNLVLS 103r0dd ANV IONVIVE LO3C0"d 'STHANLIANIAXT 'SINNIATY LOIC0™Ud 40 ITNAIHIS AHVINNNS
dNN4d S103drodd V.1IidvD
13141S1d TOOHJS dIHSNMOL NOSHOVIT

JAT-d. 1I9IHX3



€TOCAd alep uona|dwod 196.1e) pasiney

S00CA4d arep uonajdwod 1ab.e) feulblO

%00°S uonajdwod abeiuaiad

%TE9T- 150D pazuoyiny [eulblO Jano asealdu| abejuadlad

69'8¢1'8TV$ 1S0D pazuoyiny pasinay

(T€'T25'18) 1S0D PazZLoYINY [euoNIppY

00°000°005$ 150D pazuoyiny [euiblQ

00'000'00S% panss| spuog

VIN pazioyiny spuog

¢0/ST/¥0 e uonezioyiny puog

VIN areq weln

VIN Jaguinp 103loid
:uonew.ojul 108foid feuonippy

0S'v05'8.€$ 0S'v0S'8/E$ sainjipuadxa (Japun) JISA0 SanuUaAal Jo (Aoualolap) SS9oX3

698281V 6T'126'6E 6T '26'6E sainypuadxa [ejoL

00'6CV'ETT S82IAIBS UOIdNIISUOD

00°000'092 sjuawaoidwi pue pueT

69666tV 6T 1¢6'6S 6T '126'6E S92IAI8S [22IUYD3) pue [euoissajold paseyaind
:sasn Buloueuld JayiO pue sainipuadx3

69'8¢V'8TY 69'8¢V'8TY 69'8¢v'8TY SanuaAal [e1o |

69'8¢Y'8TV$ 69'82V'8TV$ 69'82V'8TV$ sJajsuel) pue spaaoold puog

:$921n0S Buloueuld JBYIO pue Sanuanay
1500 S[e1oL Tesxuaiing Sponad Jolid
pazioyiny
pasinay

113

9T0Z '0¢ ANNC d3ANT "¥VIA IHL HO4
TOOHDJS I1AAIN M3N V 40 NOILONYLSNOD FdNLNd ¥O4 ANV140 NOILISINOJV
SISVE AdV139dNg - SN1V1S 133r0dd ANV FONVYIVE LO3r0dd 'STINLIANIdXT 'SINNIAIY 1O3r0dd 40 ITNAIHIS AIVINANNS
aNN4 S1O3rodd 1v1idvo
10141S1d TOO0HJS dIHSNMOL NOSHOVL

ST-du LIdIHX3



€TOCAd alep uona|dwod 196.1e) pasiney
L002A4d arep uonajdwod 1ab.e) feulblO
%0008 uonajdwod abeiuadiad

V/N 150D pazuoyiny feulbluO J1aA0 asealou| abejuadlad

00°.¥8'9.L'G$

1S0D pazioyiny pasiney

00222'16V$ 1S0D pazuoyiny [euonippy
00'0,0'6.2'G$ 150D pazuoyiny [euiblQ
-0- panss| spuog
00'0/.0'6.2'G$ pazuoyiny spuog
G0/.2/60 e uonezioyiny puog

000T-50-0¢0-09€¢-6¢

are( elo
Jaguinp 103loid

:uonewJojul 1998loid feuonippy

00°0% GE'8/2'G6% 00°0% GE'8/2'G6% salnjpuadxa (Japun) J8A0 SaNUaAal Jo (Aoualdlyap) Ssaaxg
00°/¥8'9/.'S G9'895'T89'G G9'895'189'G salnypuadxa [ejoL
00'TLL'20C V. '2€8'v6T v.°2¢8'v6T saseyaind juswdinb3
00'G28'€98'y 2L TEV 028 2L TEV 028 S82IAIS UONONIISUOD
00°TSZ'0T. 6T 70£°999 6T #0£'999 S9IIAIS [B21UYD3] pue [euoissajoid paseyaind
:sasn Buloueuld JayiO pue sainipuadx3
00'/¥8°9L.2'S 00°/1¥8'9LL'S 00°/¥8'9.L'S sanuaAal [elol

00°2¥8'92.'G$

1s0D
pazioyiny
pasinay

00°.¥8'9.L'G$

S[ejoL TeaA Juany

00°.¥8'9.L'G$

Spolad Jold

9T0Z '0¢ ANNC d3ANT "¥VIA IHL HO4

sJajsuel) pue spaaoolid puog

:S921N0S @C_ocmc_n_ 19Y10 pue sanusanay

TOOHOS HOIH TVIHOWIIN NOSHOVE OL SINIWIAOHdINI ANV SNOILVAONIY

SISVE AdV139dNg - SN1V1S 133r0dd ANV FONVYIVE LO3r0dd 'STINLIANIdXT 'SINNIAIY 1O3r0dd 40 ITNAIHIS AIVINANNS

114

aNN4 S1O3rodd 1v1idvo
10141S1d TOO0HJS dIHSNMOL NOSHOVL

WPT-d. LI9IHX3



€T0CAd alep uonajdwod 196.1e) pasiney

1,002ZAd alep uonajdwod 19b.e) reulbuo
%0068 uons|dwod abeiuadiad

V/N 150D pazuoyiny [eulbluQ J1aA0 asealou| abejuadlad
00'€ST'vVE'S$ 1S0D pazuoyINy Pasinay
(00°222'260'T) 1S0D pazioyINy [euonIppy
00'0€6'TV1'9% 1S0D pazuoyiny [euibluo
-0- panss| spuog
00°'0€6'TVY'9% pazuoyiny spuog
G0/L2/60 aleq uonezuoyiny puog

VIN areq 1ueIo
000T-S0-8170-09€¢-6¢ Jaquinp 108loid

:uonewJojul 193loid feuonippy

00°0% £G°0% 00°0% £G°0% salnjipuadxa (Japun) JaA0 sanuanal Jo (Aoualolap) sSsaax3
00'6TECV.L'Y Ly’ 8TECV.'Y Ly’ 8TECV.'Y sainypuadxa [elo]

€T /G9'8TY Y €T°2.59'8TV'Y €T°.59'8TV'Y S8JIAISS UONONNISU0D
18'T99°€ee 7€ T199'€Ce € T99'€2E S92IAISS [B21UY23) pue [euolissajold paseyaind

:sasn Buloueuld JayiO pue sainipuadx3

00'6TECV.L'Y 00'6TECV.L'Y 00'6TECV.L'Y SanuaAal [e10L
00'6TECV.L'VS 00'6TECYL'VS 00'6TECYL'VS siajsuel) pue spasooid puog
:$801n0S Buioueulq 1ay10 pue sanuanay
1800 S[ejoL Jeaxualngy Sponad Iolid
pazioyiny
pasinay

9T0Z '0¢ ANNC d3ANT "¥VIA IHL HO4
TTOOHOS J1ddIN F44INMNYON OL SINIFNIAOHdNI ANV SNOILVYAONTH
SISVE AdV139dNg - SN1V1S 133r0dd ANV FONVYIVE LO3r0dd 'STINLIANIdXT 'SINNIAIY 1O3r0dd 40 ITNAIHIS AIVINANNS
aNN4 S1O3rodd 1v1idvo
10141S1d TOO0HJS dIHSNMOL NOSHOVL

«OT-du 1I9IHX3

115



9T0CAd

9T0CA4

%0008
VIN

00'06'2ESCTS
00'706'2ESCT$

YT/10/L0
AIED-TT-G50-09€¢

00'06'CES'CT

00°000'52$

00't06',0S°2T

(00°006'69t$)

00°006'697

00°006'v6¥$

00't00'8E0°ZT

00°006'788°TT
00'700'8t9

00'706'2ES'CT

00'006°6S8°TT
00'700'8t9

00'706'2£S'CT

00°006°697$

00'000°06€‘TT
00'700'8t9

00'706'2£S'CT

00°TL9°L59°L
00°€€2'S/8't$

1s0D
pazioyiny
pasinay

414 119IHX3

00'TL9°L59°L
00°€€2's/8'tv$

ST

TeaA Juany

00'TL9°L59°L
00'€€2's/8'tv$

Spolad Jold

9T0Z "'0¢ ANNC d3ANT "¥VIA FHL HO4

alep uonajdwod 196.1e) pasiney

alep uonajdwod 18b.er [euibuo

uonsjdwod abeiuadiad

150D pazuoyiny [eulbliO Jano asealdu| abejuaalad

1S0D pazuoyiny pasiney

1S0D pazioyiny [euonippy

100 pazuoyiny [eulbuo

are( elo

Jaguinp 109loid
:uonewlojul 108foid feuonippy

salnjpuadxa (Japun) J8A0 SaNuaAal Jo (Aoualolyap) Ssaaxg

sainypuadxa [ejo L
S82IAI9S UONONIISUOD
S32IAISS [2DIUYD3) pUR [euoissajoid paseyoind
:sas Buroueulq JaYy10 pue saimipuadx3

SanuaAal [e1o |
aAlasal [ended woly Jsjsuel |
welb goy - sa2inos aels

:$924N0S BuloueUIH JBYIO puUe SanuaAay

TOOHOS HOIH TVIHOWNTIN NOSHOVT - S3Avdodn ONIFGANNTd ANV OVAH

SISVE AdV139dNg - SN1V1S 133r0dd ANV FONVYIVE LO3r0dd 'STINLIANIdXT 'SINNIAIY 1O3r0dd 40 ITNAIHIS AIVINANNS
aNN4 S1O3rodd 1v1idvo
10141S1d TOO0HJS dIHSNMOL NOSHOVL

116



9T0CA4 arep uona|dwod 10bie) pasiney

9T0CAd a1ep uona|dwod 1ab.e) reulblQ
%00°G. uonajdwod abeuadiad

V/IN 150D pazuoyiny [eulbuQ Jano asealou| abeiuadiad
00°08Z'VTT$ 1S0D pazuoyiny pasinay
1S0D pazuoyiny [euonippy

00°08Z'VTT$ 150D pazuoyiny reuibuo
vT1/T0/L0 areq  uelo
IXZO-71-G20-09€¢ Jaquinp 108loid

:uonewloyui 10afoid [euonippy

00°0$ 68'905'.$ (06°6.7'T9$) 6.°986'8% sain)ipuadxa (J9pun) J9A0 sanUdAaI Jo (Aoualolyep) ssaox3
00082 V1T TT'€.2°90T 06'6.7'T T2'€62'G0T sainypuadxa [ejoL

00'¥€0'90T S¥'059'86 06'6.7'T$ GS'0.T'26 S2IAIBS UOIONISUOD
0091’8 992218 99'22T'8 S82IAISS [B21UY23) pue [euoissajoid paseyaind

:sasn Buloueul4 JayiO pue sainypuadx3

00°08Z'VTT 00°08Z'VTT 00'08Z'VTT sanuaAal [ejo L
00'895'89 00'895'89 0089589 dAI9sal [eNded wolj Jajsuel |
00°2T.'SV$ 00°2T.'SV$ 00°2T.L'SV$ Wwelb doY - S82.nos arels
:S921N0S m:_oc.mc_u_ 19Y10 pue sanuahay
1s00 S[e1oL Tesusind Spouad Jond
pazuoyiny
pasiney

9T0¢ '0€ INNC 3IANT J¥VIA FHL 04
TTOOHOS F1ddIN F44INMNYOIN - S3AVIOdN ALIIND3S
SISVE AYV139dNg - SNLVLS 123r0dd ANV IONVIVE LO3r0¥d 'STINLIANTdXT "'SINNIATH LOIr0dd 40 ITNAIHIOS AIVINNNS
aNNd S123rodd 1v1idvo
10141SI1d TO0OHJS dIHSNMOL NOSHOVE

D13, LIaIHX3

117



9T0CAd

9T0CAd

%00°S.L
VIN

00'282'S8T$
00'282'S8T$

¥T1/10/2L0
VYAZO-TT-G50-09€¢C

00°0% 26'656'8% (9°6TLLS) 82°6/9'9T$
00'282'G8T 80'22E€9/T 9c'6T. L 21°209'89T
05'0v2'S.T G'80€'99T 9€'6TL LS 60'68G'8ST
0S'T¥0'0T €9'€T00T €9'€T00T
00'282'G8T 00'282'G8T 00'282'G8T
00'69T'TTT 00'69T'TTT 00'69T'TTT
00°ETT'V.$ 00°ETT'V.$ 00°ETT'V.$
150D S[eol Tes A Juanny Sponiad Jolid
pazuoyiny
pasinay

JMT-d. LI9IHX3

9T0¢ '0€ INNC 3IANT J¥VIA FHL 04

arep uona|dwod 10bie) pasiney

alep uona|dwod 18b.e) feuibLO

uonajdwod abeuadiad

150D pazuoyiny [eulblQ JaA0 asealou| abejuadiad

150D pazuoyiny pasinay

1S0D pazuoyiny [euonippy

1s0D pazuoyiny [euibuo

areQ elo

Jaquinp 108loid
:uoirew.oyul 193foid jeuonippy

salnjpuadxa (Japun) 18A0 sanuaal Jo (Aouslolsp) SS89x]

sainyipuadxa e1o |
S9JIAIBS UONINIISUOD
S92IAISS [B21UYI83] pue [euolissajold paseyaind
:sasn Buloueul4 JayiO pue sainypuadx3

sanuanal [elo]
aAJasal [ended woly Jajsuel |
weib goy - S82Inos alels

:$921n0S BuloueUIH JI8YIO puR SaNUaAayY

TTOOHOS 31ddIN 21309 - S3AvdOdn ALIIND3S

SISVE AYV139dNg - SNLVLS 123r0dd ANV IONVIVE LO3r0¥d 'STINLIANTdXT "'SINNIATH LOIr0dd 40 ITNAIHIOS AIVINNNS

aNNd S123rodd 1v1idvo

10141SI1d TO0OHJS dIHSNMOL NOSHOVE

118



9T0CAd

9T0CA4

%00°G.
VIN

00'TTZ'v2C$
00°TTZ'v2C$

YT/10/L0
MCZ9O-TT-G50-09€¢C

00'0$ €7'902'v$ (99'266'G$) 60°66T°0T$
00'112'vee /5700022 99'266'S 16'TT0'VTIZ
00'9GE'6TC €8'T¢2'STC 99'266'G$ LT'622'602
00'SS8'Y v2'28L'y v2'28L'y

00'112'vee 00'TT2'v2e 00'TTZ'v2e
00'/2SVET 00'L2SVET 00'L2SVET
00'789'68% 00'789'68%$ 00'789'68%

1S0D S[e1o L Tes A juannd Spoiiad I0ud
pazuoyiny
pasinay

JT-d. LI9IHXE

9T0Z '0¢ ANNC d3ANT "¥VIA IHL HO4

alep uonajdwod 196.1e) pasinay

alep uonajdwod 18b.er feuibuo

uonsjdwod abeiuaiad

150D pazuoyiny [eulbliO Jano asealdu| abejuaalad

1S0D pazuoyiny pasiney

1S0D pazuoyiny [euonippy

100 pazuoyiny [eulbuo

are( elo

Jaguinp 103loid
:uonrewlojul 108foid feuonippy

salnjpuadxa (Japun) J8A0 SaNUaAal Jo (Aoualdlyap) Ssaaxg

sainypuadxa [ejo L
S82IAI9S UONONIISUOD
S32IAISS [BOIUYD3) puR [euoissajoid paseyoind
:sas Buroueulq JaYy10 pue saimipuadx3

SanuaAal [e1o |
aAlasal [ended woly Jsjsuel |
welb goy - sa2inos aels

:$924N0S BuloueUIH JBYIO puUe SanuaAay

TOOHOS HOIH TVIHOWIN NOSHOVT - S3AvdOdn ALIINO3S

SISVE AdV139dNg - SN1V1S 133r0dd ANV FONVYIVE LO3r0dd 'STINLIANIdXT 'SINNIAIY 1O3r0dd 40 ITNAIHIS AIVINANNS

aNN4 S1O3rodd 1v1idvo

10141S1d TOO0HJS dIHSNMOL NOSHOVL

119



9T0CA4 alep uona|dwod 1ah1e) pasiney
9T0CAd a1ep uona|dwod 1ab.e) reulblQ
%00°G. uonajdwod abeuadiad

V/N 150D pazuoyiny [euibuQ Jano asealou| abejuaaiad
00°€V6°26$ 1S0D pazuoyiny pasinay
1s0D pazuoyiny [euonippy

00°€V6°26$ 1S0D pazuoyiny reuibuo
vT1/T0/L0 areq  uelo

ALCO-TT-950-09€¢C

Jaquinp 108loid
:uoirew.oyul 193foid jeuonippy

00°0% GE'/8S'V$ 2L TvS'TS €9'v70'c$ sainjipuadxa (1apun) 1SN0 SaNUBAaI Jo (AouaIolap) SSaIX]

00°EV6'L6 G9'GGE'EH (2L 2vS'T) 1£'868'76 sainypuadxa [e10L

05'955°26 G1'696°/8 (2L2vS'TS) /8'TTS'68 S9JIAISS UOodNNSU0D

09'98¢'S 09'98¢'S 05'98€'S S82IAISS [B21UY23) pue [euoissajoid paseyaind
:sasn Buloueul4 JayiO pue sainypuadx3

00°EV6'L6 00°EV6'L6 00°EV6'L6 sanuaAal [e10 ]

00'99/'8S 00'99/'8S 00'99/'8S dAIBsal [e)ded woly Jsjsuel |

00°2.T'6E$ 00°2.T'6E$ 00°2.T'6E$ uelb Oy - S821nos alels
:$92In0S Buloueul4 JIBYIO pue sanuanay

150D SEE Tes X juanny Spouad Jold
pszuoyiny
pasinay

9T0¢ '0€ INNC 3IANT J¥VIA FHL 04
TOOHOS AJVLINIWTT3 NVNTTOH - S3AvdOdNn ALIIND3S
SISVE AYV139dNg - SNLVLS 123r0dd ANV IONVIVE LO3r0¥d 'STINLIANTdXT "'SINNIATH LOIr0dd 40 ITNAIHIOS AIVINNNS
aNNd S123rodd 1v1idvo
10141SI1d TO0OHJS dIHSNMOL NOSHOVE

w T4 1191IHX3

120



9T0CAd

9T0CAd

%00°S.L
VIN

00'6017'65$
00'6017'65$

¥T1/10/2L0
X[2ZO-TT-950-09¢€¢

00°'0% TS 70E'cs (G8°2£L'T$) 9£°Zv0'S$
00'60t'6S 6170195 G8°/EL'T ¥9'99€'¥S
05'G8Y'SS AR S8°/€L'T$ /8'v61'0G
05'€26'S L11T.8'S LLTL8'E
00'601'6S 00'60t'6S 00'601'6S
00°G¥9'SE 00°G¥9'SE 00°G¥9'SE
00192'€2$ 00'19.'€2$ 00'19.'€2$
150D S[e1o L Tes A uanund Spoiiad Joud
pazuoyiny
pasiney

AT-d. LI9IHX3

9T0¢ '0€ INNC 3IANT J¥VIA FHL 04

arep uona|dwod 10bie) pasiney

alep uona|dwod 18b.e) feuibLO

uonajdwod abeuadiad

150D pazuoyiny [eulblQ JaA0 asealou| abejuadiad

150D pazuoyiny pasinay

1S0D pazuoyiny [euonippy

1s0D pazuoyiny [euibuo

areQ elo

Jaquinp 108loid
:uoirew.oyul 193foid jeuonippy

salnjpuadxa (Japun) 18A0 sanuaal Jo (Aouslolsp) SS89x]

sainyipuadxa e1o |
S9JIAIBS UONONIISUOD
S92IAISS [B21UYI83] pue [euolissajold paseyaind
:sasn Buloueul4 JayiO pue sainypuadx3

sanuanal [elo]
aAJasal [ended woly Jajsuel |
weib goy - S82Inos alels

:$921n0S BuloueUIH JI8YIO puR SaNUaAayY

TOOHOS JT1AdIN d3NVYNISOY - SIAVHOdN ALIINDIS

SISVE AYV139dNg - SNLVLS 123r0dd ANV IONVIVE LO3r0¥d 'STINLIANTdXT "'SINNIATH LOIr0dd 40 ITNAIHIOS AIVINNNS

aNNd S123rodd 1v1idvo

10141SI1d TO0OHJS dIHSNMOL NOSHOVE

121



9T0CAd

9T0CA4

%00°G.
VIN

00'S¥S'v0T$
00°S¥S'v0T$

YT/10/L0
Z029-TT1-950-09€¢

00'0$ ZTovs'ss (50'669'1$) /T'6£2'8$
00'SYS'v0T 88'700°T0T 50'669'Y £8'S0£'96
00'SGS'00T GE'9.0L6 50'669'$ 0£°L/£26
00°066'S £6'826'S £6'826'E
00'SYS'v0T 00'SYS‘v0T 00'SYS‘v0T
002229 00'22.29 002,29
00'8T8'TV$ 00'8T8'TV$ 00'8T8'TV$
1S0D S[e1o L Tes A juannd Spoiiad I0ud
pazuoyiny
pasinay

W T-d. LI9IHX3

9T0Z '0¢ ANNC d3ANT "¥VIA IHL HO4

alep uonajdwod 196.1e) pasinay

alep uonajdwod 18b.er feuibuo

uonsjdwod abeiuaiad

150D pazuoyiny [eulbliO Jano asealdu| abejuaalad

1S0D pazuoyiny pasiney

1S0D pazuoyiny [euonippy

100 pazuoyiny [eulbuo

are( elo

Jaguinp 103loid
:uonrewlojul 108foid feuonippy

salnjpuadxa (Japun) J8A0 SaNUaAal Jo (Aoualdlyap) Ssaaxg

sainypuadxa [ejo L
S82IAI9S UONONIISUOD
S32IAISS [B2IUYD3) puR [euoissajoid paseyoind
:sas Buroueulq JaYy10 pue saimipuadx3

SanuaAal [e1o |
aAlasal [ended woly Jsjsuel |
welb goy - sa2inos aels

:$924N0S BuloueUIH JBYIO puUe SanuaAay

TOOHOS AYVINIWITI MITLIMS - S3AVIOdN ALIINOIS

SISVE AdV139dNg - SN1V1S 133r0dd ANV FONVYIVE LO3r0dd 'STINLIANIdXT 'SINNIAIY 1O3r0dd 40 ITNAIHIS AIVINANNS

aNN4 S1O3rodd 1v1idvo

10141S1d TOO0HJS dIHSNMOL NOSHOVL

122



9T0CA4 arep uona|dwod 10bie) pasiney

9T0CAd a1ep uona|dwod 1ab.e) reulblQ
%00°G. uonajdwod abeuadiad

V/N 150D pazuoyiny [euibuQ Jano asealou| abejuaaiad
00°206'G6$ 1S0D pazuoyiny pasinay
1s0D pazuoyiny [euonippy

00°206'G6$ 1S0D pazuoyiny reuibuo
vT1/T0/L0 areq  uelo
INXZ9-TT-G50-09€¢C Jaquinp 108loid

:uonewloyui 10afoid [euonippy

00°0$ 66'697'L$ (€2'829%) 21°860'8% sain)ipuadxa (J9pun) J9A0 sanUdAaI Jo (Aoualolyep) ssaox3
00'206'G6 TO'ZEY'88 €1°829 82'¢08'/8 sainypuadxa [ejoL

00'06€'/8 8/'200'08 €1'829% S0'v.E'6. S82IAJSS UOIONIISU0D
00CTS'8 €262V’ €2°62V'8 S82IAISS [B21UY23) pue [euoissajoid paseyaind

:sasn Buloueul4 JayiO pue sainypuadx3

00°206'G6 00°206'G6 00°206'G6 sanuaAal [ejo L
00°'T¥S .S 00°'T¥S .S 00°'T¥S .S dAI9sal [eNded wolj Jajsuel |
00'T9E'8ES$ 00'T9E'8ES$ 00'T9E'8ES$ welb oy - $82IN0s a1e1S
:S921N0S mc_oc.mc_u_ 19Y10 pue sanuahay
1s00 S[e1oL Tesjusind Spouad Jond
pazuoyiny
pasiney

9T0¢ '0€ INNC 3IANT J¥VIA FHL 04
TOOHOS AYVLININT T3 AHO4dMVHD - S3AVIOdN ALIIND3S
SISVE AYV139dNg - SNLVLS 123r0dd ANV IONVIVE LO3r0¥d 'STINLIANTdXT "'SINNIATH LOIr0dd 40 ITNAIHIOS AIVINNNS
aNNd S123rodd 1v1idvo
10141SI1d TO0OHJS dIHSNMOL NOSHOVE

LJUT-H., 1I9IHX3

123



9T0CAd alep uonajdwod 196.1e) pasiney

9T0CAd alep uonajdwod 19b.e) reulbuo
%00°'G. uonsjdwod abeiuaiad

V/N 1S0D pazuoyiny eulblO JaAo asealdu| abejusalad
00'TT9'TOTS$ 1S0D pazuoYyINy Pasinay
1S0D pazuoyiny euonippy

00°'TT9'TOT$ 150D pazuoyiny feulbuo
¥1/10/L0 areq weln

Jaguinp 103loid
:uonrewlojul 108foid feuonippy

00'0$ 61°957'S$ 0SV.LETS 68'T80V$ sainypuadxa (Jspun) JaA0 sanuaAal Jo (Aousloyap) ss8oxa
00'TT9'T0T 18'¥ST'96 (0e'vL€'T) 11°625'.6 sainypuadxa [ejo L

0076056 18°,€9'68 (0e'vLE'TS) TT2T0'T6 S82IAI8S UONONISUOD
00°2TS‘9 00°.TS'9 00°.1S9 S92IAIBS [B21UYI3) pue [euoISSajoid paseyaind

:sas Buroueulq JaYy10 pue saimipuadx3

00°'TT9'T0T 00°'TT9'TOT 00°'TT9'TOT SanuaAal [eloL
00°296°09 00°296'09 00°296'09 anIasal [eyded wolj Jajsuel L
00'v¥9'0t$ 00't¥9'0v$ 00'tv9'0v$ ueib AOY - S82IN0S dreIS

:S921N0S @C_ocmc_n_ 19Y10 pue sanusanay

150D ST IEEYSEN k) Spolad Jold
pazioyiny
pasinay

9T0Z '0¢ ANNC d3ANT "¥VIA IHL HO4
TOOHOS AYVLININTTI SWTH - S3AVIOdN ALIINO3S
SISVE AdV139dNg - SN1V1S 133r0dd ANV FONVYIVE LO3r0dd 'STINLIANIdXT 'SINNIAIY 1O3r0dd 40 ITNAIHIS AIVINANNS
aNN4 S1O3rodd 1v1idvo
10141S1d TOO0HJS dIHSNMOL NOSHOVL

JUT-da LI9IHX3

124



9T0CA4 arep uona|dwod 10bie) pasiney

9T0CAd a1ep uona|dwod 1ab.e) reulblQ
%00°G. uonajdwod abeuadiad

V/N 150D pazuoyiny [euibBuQ Jano0 asealou| abejuadiad
00'759'88% 1S0D pazuoyiny pasiney
1S0D pazuoyiny [euonippy

00'759'88% 1S0D pazuoyiny reuibuo
vT1/T0/L0 areq  uelo
OXZ9O-TT-950-09€¢C Jaquinp 108loid

:uonewloyui 10afoid [euonippy

00°0$ G9°080'G$ 06 vIZ'v$ G/°598% sain)ipuadxa (J9pun) J9A0 sanUdAaI Jo (Aoualolyep) ssaox3
00'759'88 GE'0/G'€8 (06'7T2'Y) G2'G8.'/8 SaIn)ipuadxa [ejoL

00'999°Z8 GE'S8S'L. (067TZ'7$) GZ'008'T8 S92IAISS UOIIINIISU0D
00°686'S 00'586°S 00°G86‘S S92IAISS [B2IUYD8] pue [euolssajold paseyaind

:sasn Buloueul4 JayiO pue sainypuadx3

00'TS9'88 00'TS9'88 00'TS9'88 sanuaAal [ejo L
00'T6T'ES 00'T6T'ES 00'T6T'ES aniasal [e)des woly Jajsuel |
00°09%'5€$ 00°09%'5€$ 00°09%'5€$ weIb @Oy - s82INos aleIs
:S921N0S mc_oc.mc_u_ 19Y10 pue sanuahay
1s00 S[e1oL Tesusind Spouad Jond
pazuoyiny
pasiney

9T0¢ '0€ INNC 3IANT J¥VIA FHL 04
TOOHOS AYVLINTNTTI NOSNHOC - S3AvdOdnN ALIIND3S
SISVE AYV139dNg - SNLVLS 123r0dd ANV IONVIVE LO3r0¥d 'STINLIANTdXT "'SINNIATH LOIr0dd 40 ITNAIHIOS AIVINNNS
aNNd S123rodd 1v1idvo
10141SI1d TO0OHJS dIHSNMOL NOSHOVE

WOT-d. LI19IHX3

125



9T0ZAL
9T0ZAd
%00°G.
V/N
00°€L6'2VT$
00°€L6'2VT$
¥T/T0/LO
00'0$ 12°'€22'8% (£€°0£5'V$) vS'€GL°2T$
00°€.6'CYT 6,67, VET ££'0ES'Y 9¥'6T2'0ET
00'626'SET G0'8¥8'GZT £€°05'v'$ 2L LTETCT
00't70'6 v.°1T06'8 v.°T06'8
00°€.6'CYT 00°EL6'ZT 00°EL6'ZT
00'8.'G8 00'8.'G8 00'8.'G8
00'68T‘LS$ 00'68T‘LS$ 00'68T‘LS$
1S0D S|elo Jea A Jualnd Spoliad iolid
pazuoyiny
pasiney

STOZ '0€ INNC A3ANT JVIA IHL 04

alep uonajdwod 196.1e) pasiney

alep uonajdwod 18b.er [euibuo

uonsjdwod abeiuadiad

150D pazuoyiny [eulbliO Jano asealdu| abejuaalad

1S0D pazuoyiny pasiney
1S0D pazioyiny [euonippy
100 pazuoyiny [eulbuo
are( elo
Jaguinp 109loid
:uonrewuojul 108foid feuonippy

salnjpuadxa (Japun) J8A0 SaNuUaAal Jo (Aoualolyap) Ssaaxg

sainypuadxa [ejo L
S82IAI9S UONONIISUOD
S32IAISS [BOIUYD3) pUR [euoissajoid paseyoind
:sas Buroueulq JaYy10 pue saimipuadx3

SanuaAal [e1o |
aAlasal [ended woly Jsjsuel |
welb goy - s82inos aels

:$924n0S BuloueUIH JBYIO puUe SanuaAay

TOOHOS ALd3dIT NOSHOVL - SAAVHOdN ALIINDIS

SISVYg AYVY139dNg - SNLVLS 103r0dd ANV IONVIVE LO3C0"d 'STHANLIANIAXT 'SINNIATY LOIC0™Ud 40 ITNAIHIS AHVINNNS

LT3, 119IHX3

dNN4d S103drodd V.1IidvD

13141S1d TOOHJS dIHSNMOL NOSHOVI

126



S¥'200°L.8 $ 96°G55'681 $ 65'8TE'620'92T ¢ 00'2/8'G6E'22T $

00°000'GZ 00°006'691 00700'8€0'2T 00'706'2€5'2T

ZTovs'e S0'669't £8'50£'96 00°S¥S‘v0T

1870E'e G8'.€1'T ¥9'99€'vS 00°607'65

Ge'/8S'Y (2L72vs'T) 1£'868'76 00°€V6'L6

§9°080'S (06'v12'7) G2'68.°'18 00°7T59'88

12'€22'8 ££°0ES'Y 9¥'6T2'0ET 00°€.6'ZYT

6T°9SY'S (oev.e'T) 1162526 00°TT9'T0T

66'697'L £1°829 82'€08'.8 00'206'G6

£7'902'y 99'266'S 16'TT0'VTC 00'TT2'v2Z

26'656'8 9E'6TL L 2.'209'89T 00'282'S8T

68'905'L 06'6.7'T 12'€62'S0T 00°082'vTT

88'2TT'L69 21°288'€2y'0T 00°000'TZT‘TT

1E7S5'96 $ $ 69'TT9'0EY'20T  $ 00'99T°/2S'20T  $
IONV1Ivd dv3A INTIHND dv3aA dordd SNOILVIddOodddvy
103rodd J1vad OL STINLIANIdX3

a3aan3adxann

(AINO OW3N)

«C-d. 119IHX3

¥102/T/L

¥102/T/L
¥102/T/L
¥102/T/L
¥102/T/L
Y102/T/L
Y102/T/L
Y102/T/L
Y102/T/L
Y102/T/L
Y102/T/L

S00¢/LT/6

c00c/eei/t

31vd
TVNIOIHO

9T0¢ '0€ INNC 40 SV

s[elo]

j00yas ybiH [eUowsalN uosxyoer
sapesbdn DVAH pue Buiqunid
|00YaS Arejuswis|3 IPIMS
|00Y9S 3|pPPIN laneuasoy
j00Yyas Arejuswia|3 uew|oH
|jooyos Areyuawa|3 uosuyor
|ooyds ybiH Auaqr uosxyoer
|jooyos Arejuswa|3 sw|3
|00y9oS Areuswa|3 piopmelDd
|00Y2S YbIH [elows| uosyoer
|00Y2S 3IpPIN 71809
100YJS 3IPPIN 3NN
:sopeibdn Anoas

[00U2S BIPPIN SYINYIIN BISLYD pue
|00Y2S YBIH [elows| uosyoer 01 siuswanoidw| pue suoieAousy

JO0Y9IS 3|PPIN M3BN B JO UOIIONJISU0D aininy 8yl 1o} pue| Jo uonisinboy
8y pue ‘S|o0ydS 0M] Je suonippe WNISeUWAS JO UOIloNJISU0D

pue uoleAoUaY ‘[00YIS Aleluawa|g MaN e JO uUononisuo)

‘looyas ybiH maN e pjing o1 Juswdinb3 % pueT jo uonisinbay

371111 123r0dd/ANSSI

SISVE AdV139dNg - S34NLIANIdXT 103r0dd 40 INJWILVLS AIVININNS
aNNd S123rodd 1V11dvO

13141S1d TOOHOS dIHSNMOL NOSMOVL

127



PROPRIETARY FUND DETAIL STATEMENTS

Proprietary funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the district's board is that the costs
of providing goods or services be financed through user charges.

FOOD SERVICES FUND: This fund provides for the operation of Food services
within the school district.

CHILD CARE FUND: This fund provides for the operation of a Child Care program
within the school district.

COMMUNITY SCHOOL FUND: This fund provides for the operation of a Community School
within the school district.

PRE-SCHOOL FUND: This fund provides for the operation of a Pre-School program
within the school district.

DIGITAL MEDIA PROGRAM FUND: This Fund provides for the operation of the District's
Digital Media Program

EXTENDED ENRICHMENT KINDERGARTEN
PROGRAM FUND: This Fund provides for the operation of the District's
Extended Enrichment Kindergarten Program

SUMMER ELECTIVE FUND This Fund provides for the operation of the District's
Summer Elective Program

STEM SUMMER CAMP FUND This Fund provides for the operation of the District's
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS DETAIL STATEMENTS

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for funds received by the district for a specific purpose:

Celebration of Excellence This private purpose trust is used to account for donations received
that are used for Teacher Awards

Jackson Championship Fund This private purpose trust is used to account for donations received
that are for the purchase of awards for the Jackson High School Football team.

Unemployment Compensation This expendable trust fund is used to pay
Insurance Trust Fund: unemployment compensation claims as they arise.

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the district as an agent for another party:

Student Activity Fund : This agency fund is used to account for student funds held at
the schools.
Payroll Fund: This agency fund is used to account for the payroll transactions of the

school district.
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Elementary Schools
Howard C. Johnson
Lucy N. Holman
Switlik
Crawford - Rodriguez

Middle Schools
Carl W. Goetz
Christa McAuliffe
Sylvia Rosenauer

High Schools:

Jackson Memorial High School

JMHS - Athletic Fund
Liberty High School

Liberty High School Athletic Fund

Grand Total

JACKSON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

STUDENT ACTIVITY FUND

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

EXHIBIT "H-3"

CASH

BALANCE CASH DISBURSE- BALANCE
JUNE 30, 2015 RECEIPTS MENTS JUNE 30, 2016
$14,448.31 $1,332.87 $7,637.30 $8,143.88
1,788.35 3,015.92 3,212.06 1,592.21
4,166.54 948.72 4,397.88 717.38
2,591.81 691.83 1,355.56 1,928.08
22,995.01 5,989.34 16,602.80 12,381.55
92,605.81 105,035.91 114,722.98 82,918.74
63,164.07 108,621.41 105,942.00 65,843.48
358.14 3,589.89 3,218.79 729.24
156,128.02 217,247.21 223,883.77 149,491.46
239,104.46 544,109.07 562,321.16 220,892.37
16,023.16 91,642.00 87,175.50 20,489.66
158,415.14 417,346.69 426,529.00 149,232.83
26,682.05 82,078.27 76,599.27 32,161.05
440,224.81 1,135,176.03 1,152,624.93 422,775.91
$619,347.84 $1,358,412.58 $1,393,111.50 $584,648.92
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES SCHEDULES

The Long-Term schedules are used to reflect the outstanding principal balances of the long-term
liabilities of the District. This includes obligations under Serial Bonds and Capital Leases.
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STATISTICAL SECTION - UNAUDITED







TOWNSHIP OF JACKSON SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATISTICAL SECTION

Contents Page
Financial Trends:

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how
the district's financial performance and well being have changed over time. J-1t0J-4

Revenue Capacity:

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the district's
most significant local revenue source, the property tax. J-5t0 J-9

Debt Capacity:
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the district's current levels of outstanding debt and the district's ability to issue
additional debt in the future. J-10 to J-13

Demographic and Economic Information:

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the district's financial activities take place. J-14 to J-15

Operating Information:
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand
how the information in the district's financial report relates to the services the district
provides and the activities it performs. J-16 to J-20

Sources

Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual
financial reports (CAFR) for the relevant year.
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EXHIBIT "J-7"

TOWNSHIP OF JACKSON SCHOOL DISTRICT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

UNAUDITED
Township of Jackson Board of Education Overlapping Rates

Fiscal Year General Total Direct Total Direct and

Ended Obligation School Township of Ocean Overlapping
June 30, Basic Rate (a) Debt Service (b) Tax Rate Jackson County Tax Rate

2015 $1.148 $0.121 $1.269 $0.474 $0.411 $2.154
2014 1.126 0.107 1.233 0.468 0.396 2.097
2013 1.097 0.095 1.192 0.458 0.390 2.040
2012 1.069 0.094 1.163 0.441 0.364 1.968
2011 1.059 0.107 1.166 0.432 0.349 1.947
2010 0.987 0.101 1.088 0.398 0.343 1.829
2009* 0.945 0.089 1.034 0.392 0.344 1.770
2008 2.104 0.206 2.310 0.824 0.770 3.904
2007 2.067 0.211 2.278 0.824 0.741 3.843
2006 2.004 0.228 2.232 0.824 0.718 3.774

* - Revaluation

Source: District Records and Municipal Tax Collector
(Rates are per $100 of assessed value)

NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax levy. The levy when
added to other components of the district's net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by
more than the spending growth limitation calculated as follows: the prebudget year net budget increased
by the cost of living or 2.5 percent, whichever is greater, plus any spending growth adjustments.

(a) The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the
net valuation taxable

(b) Rates for debt service are based on each year's requirements.
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EXHIBIT "J-9"

TOWNSHIP OF JACKSON SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
UNAUDITED

Fiscal Year Taxes Levied Collected within the Fiscal Year of the Levy (a)
Ended for the Percentage Collections in

June 30, Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Subsequent Years
2016 $85,922,857.00 $85,922,857.00 100.00% 0.00
2015 83,422,645.00 83,422,645.00 100.00% 0.00
2014 80,493,898.00 80,493,898.00 100.00% 0.00
2013 78,410,008.00 78,410,008.00 100.00% 0.00
2012 78,410,008.00 78,410,008.00 100.00% 0.00
2011 77,859,969.00 77,859,969.00 100.00% 0.00
2010 70,968,038.00 70,968,038.00 100.00% 0.00
2009 68,883,818.00 68,883,818.00 100.00% 0.00
2008 68,892,289.00 68,892,289.00 100.00% 0.00
2007 66,156,083.00 66,156,083.00 100.00% 0.00

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

Note: School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is
required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in is the amount voted upon or certified prior
to the end of the school year.
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TOWNSHIP OF JACKSON SCHOOL DISTRICT
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

UNAUDITED
Governmental Activities
Fiscal Year General Percentage
Ended Obligation Capital Total of Personal
June 30 Bonds (b) Leases District Income (a)
2016 $76,235,000.00 $2,623,039.58 $78,858,039.58 N/A
2015 82,065,000.00 3,628,345.12 85,693,345.12 N/A
2014 87,236,000.00 3,211,198.37 90,447,198.37 0.490%
2013 91,391,000.00 3,248,796.40 94,639,796.40 0.046%
2012 94,831,000.00 2,822,422.05 97,653,422.05 0.044%
2011 99,390,000.00 2,485,996.37 101,875,996.37 0.037%
2010 103,745,000.00 1,359,466.18 105,104,466.18 0.038%
2009 107,640,000.00 1,351,992.94 108,991,992.94 0.029%
2008 111,570,000.00 2,277,588.69 113,847,588.69 0.029%
2007 115,090,000.00 3,042,836.05 118,132,836.05 0.028%

Source: District CAFR Schedules I-1, I-2
Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
(a) See Exhibit NJ J-14 for personal income and population data. These ratios are calculated using personal
income and population for the prior calendar year.

(b) Includes Early Retirement Incentive Plan (ERIP) refunding

N/A - Not available
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EXHIBIT "J-10"

Per Capita (a)

N/A
$1,640.03
1,602.28
1,838.67
1,755.85
1,847.96
1,912.24
2,049.07
2,164.94
2,246.85



Fiscal Year
Ended
June 30

2016
2015
2014
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007

TOWNSHIP OF JACKSON SCHOOL DISTRICT

RATIOS OF NET BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

UNAUDITED

General Bonded Debt Outstanding

General
Obligation
Bonds

$76,235,000.00
82,065,000.00
87,236,000.00
91,391,000.00
94,831,000.00
99,390,000.00
103,745,000.00
107,640,000.00
111,570,000.00
115,090,000.00

Deductions

$0.00
655,000.00
1,275,000.00
1,865,000.00
2,425,000.00
2,955,000.00
3,465,000.00
3,950,000.00
4,415,000.00
4,865,000.00

Net General
Bonded Debt

Outstanding

$76,235,000.00
81,410,000.00
85,961,000.00
89,526,000.00
92,406,000.00
96,435,000.00
100,280,000.00
103,690,000.00
107,155,000.00
110,225,000.00

Percentage of
Actual Taxable
Value (a) of

Property

N/A
1.221%
1.293%
1.344%
1.377%
1.429%
1.483%
1.533%
3.592%
3.719%

EXHIBIT "J-11"

Per Capita (b)

N/A
$1,558.06
1,522.81
1,739.31
1,661.50
1,749.26
1,824.47
1,949.39
2,037.67
2,096.45

Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

(a) See Exhibit J-6 for property tax data.

(b) Population data can be found in Exhibit J-14.
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TOWNSHIP OF JACKSON SCHOOL DISTRICT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015

UNAUDITED
Estimated
Gross Debt Percentage
Governmental Unit Outstanding Applicable (a)
Debt repaid with property taxes
Jackson Township $35,309,326.70 100.00%
Other debt
Ocean County 932,810,000.00 7.11%
Ocean County Utilities Authority 154,190,632.00 4.16%

Subtotal, overlapping debt
Jackson School District Direct Debt

Total direct and overlapping debt

Source: Township of Jackson Chief Financial Officer, Ocean County Treasurer's Office and Ocean
County Utilities Authority.

EXHIBIT "J-12"

Estimated Share
of Overlapping
Debt

$35,309,326.70

66,336,158.54

6,421,639.26

108,067,124.50

82,065,973.00

$190,133,097.50

(a) For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property
values. Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of another governmental unit's taxable value that is within

the district's boundaries and dividing it by each unit's total taxable value.
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EXHIBIT "J-14"

TOWNSHIP OF JACKSON SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

UNAUDITED
Per Capita Unemployment
Year Population (a) Personal Income (b) Personal Income (c) Rate (d)
2015 52,251 N/A N/A 5.50%
2014 56,449 $2,505,263,069.00 $44,381.00 6.70%
2013 51,472 2,224,311,008.00 43,214.00 7.80%
2012 55,616 2,402,611,200.00 43,200.00 9.20%
2011 55,129 2,245,073,396.00 40,724.00 9.00%
2010 54,964 2,214,554,524.00 40,291.00 9.30%
2009 53,191 1,707,377,909.00 32,099.00 9.20%
2008 52,587 1,711,549,089.00 32,547.00 5.40%
2007 52,577 1,735,514,193.00 33,009.00 4.00%
2006 52,192 1,750,363,104.00 33,537.00 4.40%

Source:

(a) Population information provided by the NJ Dept. of Labor and Workforce Development.

(b) Personal income has been estimated based upon the municipal population and per capita personal income presented.

(c) Per capita personal income by municipality estimated based upon the 2001 Census published by the US Bureau of
Economic Analysis.

(d) Unemployment data provided by the NJ Dept. of Labor and Workforce Development.
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JACKSON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

INSURANCE SCHEDULE

UNAUDITED

Property:

Special Multi Peril Package: Selective Insurance Co./ACCASBOJIF

Blanket Buildings & Contents, EDP Equipment. Data, Media
& Extra Expense Musical Instruments & Contractor Equip.
Blanket Business Income & Extra Expense
Blanket Valuable Papers
Demolition Costs
Increased Cost of Construction
Class Coverage
Earthquake
Flood:
Outside the Flood Zone
Inside the Flood Zone

General Liability - Selective Insurance Co./ACCASBOJIF
General Aggregate Limit
Products & Completed Operations Aggregate Limit
Per Occurrence Limit
Personal & Advertising Injury Limit
Fire Legal Liability Limit
Medical Payments Limit
Employee Benefit Liability

Boiler & Machinery - Travelers Insurance
Property Damage up to Limits of Blanket Buildings/Contents
Expediting Expenses

Ammonia Contamination
Water Damage
Hazardous Substance / Pollution Cleanup

Crime Insurance - Selective Insurance Co.
Employee Dishonesty
Faithful Performance
Forgery or alteration
Money & Securities:
Loss Inside
Loss Outside
Counterfeit Papers

Commercial Automobile Insurance -
Carrier: Selective Insurance Co./ACCASBOJIF
Comprehensive Liability

School Board Legal Liability - Carrier ACE USA/JACCASBOJIF
Limit of Liability
Aggregate Limit
Self Insured Retention Limit

Student Accident: 2 policies (Basic & Catastrophe Plan)
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COVERAGE

$150,000,000
Within Blanket Limit
Within Blanket Limit
Within Blanket Limit
Within Blanket Limit
Within Blanket Limit
75,000,000

50,000,000
5,000,000

10,000,000
10,000,000
10,000,000
10,000,000
2,500,000
500,000
10,000,000

100,000,000
250,000

12 Consecutive months
500,000
Within Blanket Limit
250,000

500,000 Per Occurrence
500,000
500,000

500,000

500,000
500,000

10,000,000

10,000,000 (Each Claim)
10,000,000 (Each Policy Year)

EXHIBIT “J-20”
SHEET #1

DEDUCTIBLE

$500
500
500
500
500
500

125,000

25,000

500,000

none

1,000

1,000
1,000
1,000
1,000

500
500
500

500
500
500



EXHIBIT “J-20”
SHEET #2

JACKSON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

INSURANCE SCHEDULE

6/30/2016
UNAUDITED

Carrier: XL Catlin Insurance Co. through Bob McCloskey Agency

Basic Disability Plan for all students including interscholastic athletes:

Accidental Death Benefit limit

80% coinsurance, $1000 deductible

Full Excess plan, 2 year benefit period

Catastrophe Plan for all students including interscholastic athletes:
Excess Disability limit over basic plan- Max Medical Expense Benefit
Accidental Death Benefit limit

10 year benefit period

Board Secretary / Business Administrator
Carrier: Travelers Insurance Co
Treasurer of School Funds
Carrier: Travelers Insurance Co.

Workers Compensation
Limit of Liability

Employers Liability/Occupational Injury
Deductible

Pollution & Microbial Matter Legal Liability-Carrier ACE USA
Pollution Legal Liability Limit of Liability

Microbial Matter Legal Liability Limit of Liability

Policy annual aggregate

Pollution Legal Liability Deductible

Microbial Legal Liability Deductible
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COVERAGE DEDUCTIBLE

$25,000
10,000

5,000,000
10,000

250,000

750,000

Statutory
10,000,000 per occurrence
none

3,000,000 per pollution condition
1,000,000 per pollution condition
2,000,000
$25,000
50,000
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SINGLE AUDIT SECTION




EXHIBIT “K-1"

SUPLEE, CLOONEY & CoMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122

Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535
E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF BASIC FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education
Jackson School District

County of Ocean

Jackson, New Jersey 08527

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of
Jackson School District (the "District") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated November 18, 2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Jackson School District's
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the District's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.
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SUPLEE, CLOONEY & CoOMPANY

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might
be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. However we did
note an immaterial instance of noncompliance that we have reported to the Board of Education of the
Jackson School District in a separate Auditor's Management Report on Administrative Findings —
Financial and Compliance dated November 18, 2016.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

G, < g

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCIﬁUNTANTS /

“A

November 18, 2016 PUBLIC SCHOOLACCOUNTAy/NO. 962
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EXHIBIT “K-2"

SUPLEE, CLOONEY & CoMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122

Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535
E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL
AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 15-08

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education
Jackson School District

County of Ocean

Jackson, New Jersey 08527

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited the Jackson School District’'s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey OMB State Grant
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Jackson School
District's major federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2016. The District's major
federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to its federal and state programs.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Jackson School
District's major federal and state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey OMB 15-08. Those standards, the Uniform Guidance and New
Jersey OMB 15-08 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on a major federal or state program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Jackson School District's compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each

major federal and state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
Jackson School District's compliance.
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SUPLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY

Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

In our opinion, the Jackson School District complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its
major federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Jackson School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Jackson School District's
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material
effect on each major federal and state program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each
major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with
the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB 15-08, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Jackson School District’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal or state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance and State of New Jersey OMB 15-08. Accordingly, this report

is not suitable for any other purpose.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACGDUNTANTS /

b e

November 18, 2016 PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTAN//MO 962
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NOTE 1:

NOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

EXHIBIT “K-5"
Jackson Township School District
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards
and State Financial Assistance
Year Ended June 30, 2015

GENERAL

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state
financial assistance include federal and state activity of the Board of Education,
Jackson Township School District. The Board of Education is defined in Note 1
to the Board’s basic financial statements. All federal and state awards received
directly from the federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state
financial assistance passed through other government agencies is included on
the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financials assistance.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and federal awards and
state financial assistance are presented on the budgetary basis of accounting
with the exceptions of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are
presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are
described in Note 1 of the Board’s basic financial statements. The information in
this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular
A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue
fund on a GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison statements or schedule (RSI) are
presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-
regulated legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant
agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting,
revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have
been made.

The General fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified
accrual basis with the exception of the revenue recognition of the last state aid
payment in the current budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A.
18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes, that payment is not recognized until the
subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and recording of the last state
aid payment in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in
the accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which
recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related
revenue, whereas GAAP basis does not. The special revenue fund also
recognizes the last state aid payment in the current budget year, consistent with
N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2.
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NOTE 3:

NOTE 4:

NOTE 5:

Jackson Township School District
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards
and State Financial Assistance
Year Ended June 30, 2015

RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is
$26,599.00 for the general fund. See the notes to the required supplementary
information for a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual
basis of accounting for the general and special revenue funds. Federal awards
and state financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board's basic
financial statements on a GAAP basis as follows:

Federal State Total

General Fund $193,499.59 62,111,134.43 $62,304,634.02
Special Revenue Fund 2,883,208.00 218,122.89 3,101,330.89
Capital Project Fund 1,790,435.46 1,790,435.46
Debt Service Fund 1,342,652.00 1,342,652.00
Food Service Fund 1,019,348.56 26,756.19 1,046,104.75

Financial Assistance 4,096,056.15 65,489,100.97 69,585,157.12
GAAP Adjustment 26,599.00 26,599.00
Total Awards &

Financial Assistance $4,096,056.15 $65,515,699.97 $69,611,756.12

RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts
reported in the related federal and state financial reports.

OTHER

Revenues and expenditures reported in the Food Distribution Program represent
current year value received and current year distributions respectively. TPAF
Social Security contributions represent the amount reimbursed by the state for
the employer’s share of Social Security contributions for TPAF members for the
year ended June 30, 2015. The amount reported as TPAF pension contributions
reported in the financial statements represents the amount paid by the state on
behalf of the district for the year ended June 30, 2015.
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Jackson Township School District
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Section | — Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

(1)
(2)

3)

Type of Auditor's Report Issued:
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting:
€) Material weakness identified?

(b) Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to basic financial statements noted?

Federal Program(s)

(1)

(2)

3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

Internal Control Over Major Federal Programs:
(a) Material weakness identified?

(b) Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Type of Auditor’'s Report issued on compliance for major federal
program(s)?

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with Section.510(a) of Circular OMB A-133?

Identification of Major Federal Program(s):

Number Program

84.367 Title Il

10.550 U.S.D.A. Commodities Program

10.553 National School Breakfast Program

10.555 National School Lunch Program

10.551 Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program

Program Threshold Determination:
Type A Federal Program Threshold > $300,000.00
Type B Federal Program Threshold <= $300,000.00

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under OMB Circular A-133?
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Jackson Township School District

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Section | — Summary of Auditor’s Results (Continued)

State Program(s)

(1)

(2)

3)

(4)

()

(6)

Internal Control Over Major State Programs:

@) Material weakness identified?

(b) Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Type of Auditor’'s Report issued on compliance for major state

program(s)?

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with N.J. OMB Circular 04-04?

Identification of Major State Program(s):

Grant
Number

15-495-034-5120-078
15-495-034-5120-089
15-495-034-5120-084
15-495-034-5120-085
15-495-034-5120-098
15-495-034-5120-097
15-495-034-5120-044
Various

Program

Equalization Aid

Categorical Special Education Aid
Security Aid

Adjustment Aid

PARCC Readiness Aid

Per Pupil Growth Aid
Extraordinary Aid

SDA Grants

Program Threshold Determination:
Type A State Program Threshold > $1,737,397.86
Type B State Program Threshold <= $1,737,397.86

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under OMB Circular A-133?

Section Il — Financial Statement Audit — Reported Findings

Under Government Auditing Standards

Internal Control Findings

None Reported

Compliance Findings

None Reported
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Jackson Township School District
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Section Il = Findings and Questioned Costs Relative to Major Federal and State Programs

Federal Programs — None Reported

State Programs — None Reported
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EXHIBIT “K-7"
Jackson Township School District

Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

Not Applicable
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